RAIN CARBON INC

AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2021




2nd Floor, Kakatiya Hills
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Madhapur, Hyderabad - 500 081.
Phone : 040-42212088
E-mall : creoca@gmaill.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ¥Web :www.crcoca.in

w( C. RAMACHANDRAM & CO. Plot No. 539, Souhiti Samriddhi,

To the Members of Rain Carbon INC

We have audited the accompanying IND AS Financial Statements of M/s Rain Carbon INC
(the Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2021, and the statement
of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The IND AS Financial Statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, results of operations and cash flows of the Company; this
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT). Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order (o design audit procedures that arc appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of‘accou 1ting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the {inancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at
December 31, 2021, and of its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
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C. BAMACHANDRAM & CO. Continuation Sheet
Chartered Accountants

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Notes forming part of financial
statements, which describes the basis of preparation of Financial Statements. The financial
statements are prepared for consolidated financial statements of M/s Rain Industries Limited
(the holding company). As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another
purpose.

For C RAMACHANDRAM & CO
Chartered Accountants
/w,j‘wv - FRN: 0028648

Place: Hyderabad /%/W\tfﬂax .
7 e O 3
Date: February 22, 2022 5‘; - )45\;01 W
' - ]
hL. 7 /

&/ C RAMACHANDRAM
‘ Partner
Membership No.: 25834
UDIN: 22025834ADJVOG8082




Rain Carbon Ine.
Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 2.33 3.31
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investiments 4 20,139.16 20,139.16
(ii) Loans 5 40,196.29 39,520.04
(c) Deferred tax asset, net 12.10 92.76
(d) Other non-current tax assets, net 106.50 -
s04ss0s | [ 59,751.96
2. Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 6 136.62 18.92
(i) Loans 7 - 170.31
(ii1) Other financials assets 8 1,283.19 1,520.73
1,419.81 1,709.96
(b) Other current assets 9 4.67 9.18
TOTAL 61,880.86 61.474.41
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 10 17,777.87 16,270.47
(b) Other Equity 11 266.71 3,456.59
18,044.58 19,727.06
2. Liabilities
Non current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 40,123.88 39,645.55
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 341.78 -
(ii) Other financial liabiltiies 14 3,358.61 2,092.77
(b) Other current liablities 15 12.01 3.53
(c) Current tax liabilities - 5.50
TOTAL 61,880.86 61,474.41
Corporate information 1 ]
Significant accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 0028645/ f;}j”"’“

C. Ramachandram

Partner
M.No 025834

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 22, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Director
DIN: 00017633




Rain Carbon Inc.
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended December 31,2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note

1 Total income
Other income 16
Total income

2 Expenses
Employee benefits expense 17
Finance costs 18
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3
Other expenses 19
Total expenses

3 Profit before tax (1-2)

4 Tax expense/(benefit) 20

1. Current tax
2. Deferred tax

5  Profit for the year (3-4)

6  Other Comprehensive Income/(loss)
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(11) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Exchange Differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operation
(i1) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Loss for the year

7  Total Comprehensive Income for the year (6+7)

Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

For the year ended

For the year ended

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
470255 4,046.51
4,702.55 4,046.51

103.02 105.84
3,089.03 3,108.53
1.03 1.04
1,203 .43 673.71
4,396.51 3,889.12
306.04 157.39
(113.50) -
85.29 (45.25)
334.25 202.64
(13.21) (20.51)
(13.21) (20.51)
321.04 182.13

As per our report of even date attached
For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0028643.--

C. Ramachandram
Partner
M.No 025834

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 22, 2022

i

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore

Director
DIN: 00017633
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Rain Carbon Inc.

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended December 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Attributable to owners of the Company
Reserves and Surplus Other c.nmpl‘ehenswc
income
Particulars Equity Share Exchange differences Total
Capital Capital Retained on translating the
Reserve Earnings financial statements of a
foreign operation
Balance at the beginning of the year 16,270.47 331.85 (2,033.70) 5,158.44 19,727.06
Issue of Common Stock 1,507.40 - - - 1,507.40
Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year - - 334.25 (13.21) 321.04
Dividends - - (3,510.92) - (3,510.92)
Balance as at December 31, 2021 17,777.87 331.85 (5,210.37) 5,145.23 18,044.58
Attributable to owners of the Company
Reserves and Surplus Other c.omprehensxve
income
Particulars Equity Share Exchange differences Total
Capital Capital Retained on translating the
Reserve Earnings financial statements of a
foreign operation
Balance at the beginning of the year 16,270.47 331.85 (2,236.34) 5,178.95 19,544.93
Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year - - 202.64 (20.51) 182.13
Balance as at December 31, 2020 16,270.47 331.85 (2,033.70) 5,158.44 19,727.06

Description of the purposes of each reserve within equity:

Reserves and Surplus:

(a) Capital reserve: It consists of pre-acquisition profits. During amalgamation, the excess of net assets taken, over the cost of consideration paid is treated as capital reserve.

(b) Retained earnings: Retained earnings represents the net profits after all distributions and transfers to other reserves.

Items of Other Comprehensive Income:

(a) Foreign currency translation reserve (FCTR): Represents the FCTR of the foreign subsidiary. For the purpose of Group consolidation, the financial statements are translated at
average rate of items in statement of profit and loss and at closing rate of the items in Balance sheet.

As per our report of even date attached

For C. Ramachandram & Co

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\'—M‘_‘M

C. Ramachandram
Partner
M.No 025834

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Director
DIN: 00017633

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 22, 2022



Rain Carbon Ine.

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended December 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 306.04 15739
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1.03 1.04
Loss on redemption of senior secured notes 10.83 -
Interest and other borrowing costs 3,089.03 3,108.53
Interest income (2,958.78) (2,955.35)
Dividend from subsidiary companies (590.63) (354.79)
(448.52) (200.57)
Operating loss before working capital changes (142.48) (43.18)
Adjustments for :
Other financial asscts 248.05 (175.22)
Other current liabilities 7.88 (55.41)
Other financial habilitics 686.20 810.78
942.13 576.15
Cash generated from operations 799.65 532.97
Income taxes paid, net (0.20) (0.80)
Net cash from operating activities 799.45 532.17
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Loans given to subsidiaries during the year (413.89) (171.57)
Loans repaid by subsidiaries during the year 598.35 -
Interest received 12.00 -
Dividend received from Subsidiaries 590.63 354.79
Net cash (used in) / from investing activities 787.09 183.22
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 1,507.40 -
Proceeds from non-current borrowings - 476.64
Repayment of non-current borrowings (338.47) (472.91)
Net increase / (decrease) in working capital borrowings 346.58 (692.99)
Interest and other borrowing costs paid (12.28) (44.94)
Dividend paid (2,974.93) -
Net cash used in financing activities (1,471.70) {734.20)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 114.84 (18.81)
Cash and cash equivalents - opening balance 18.92 39.70
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash 2.86 (1.97)
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - closing balance (Refer Note (ii) below) 136.62 18,92
Notes:
(i) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard - 7 on Statement on Cash Flows.
(it) Components of Cash and cash equivalents:
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 136.62 1892
136.62 18.92

As per our report of even date attached
For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 0028648

C. Ramachandram
Partner
M.No 025834

CRABAD °'
«y

)5'«“

fite

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 22, 2022

For and on bebalf of the Board of Directors

)
—
e

e

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Director
DIN: 00017633
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Rain Carbon Inc.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 4: Non-current investments

A. Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)

Equity shares carried at cost

(1) of subsidiaries
Rain Carbon Holdings LLC

Investment in ROUTGERS Wohnimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG
Investment in RUTGERS Gewerbeimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG

Total

(a) aggregate amount of unquoted investements

Note 5: Non-current loans

(Unsecured, considered good)

Loans and advances

- to related parties

Total

Note 6: Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
- in current accounts

Total

Note 7: Current loans

(Unsecured, considered good)

Advances to related parties

- Other intercompany advances

Total

Note 8: Other current financial assets

Interest accrued on loans

Contractually reimbursable expenses

Total

Note 9: Other current assets

Prepaid expenses

Total

As at As at

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
20,017.28 20,017.28
21.84 21.84
100.04 100.04
20,139.16 20,139.16
20,139.16 20,139.16
40,196.29 39,520.04
40,196.29 39,520.04
136.62 18.92
136.62 18.92
- 170.31
- 170.31
740.68 728.86
542,51 791.87
1,283.19 1,520.73
4.67 9.18
4.67 9.18




Rain Carbon Inc.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 13: Current borrowings

Loans repayable on demand

Loans and advances from related parties

- Unsecured

Total

Note 14: Other current financial liabilities

As at
December 31, 2021

As at
December 31, 2020

Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Others
- Contractually reimbursable expenses
- Payables to auditors

- Others

Total

Note 15: Other current liabilities

Other payables

- Others

Total

341.78 -

341.78 -
735.08 728.22
2,087.46 1,363.45
1.11 1.10

534.96 -
3,358.61 2,092.77
12.01 3.53
12.01 3.53




Rain Carben Inc.
Neotes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Note 10: Share capital Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares Shares

Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity Shares 5,000.00 17,777.87

5,000.00 16,270.47

Total 5,000.00 17,777.87

5,000.00 16,270.47




Rain Carbon Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 11: Other equity

(i) Reserves and Surplus

(a) Capital Reserve

(b) Retained Earnings
Opening balance

Add: Profit for the year
Less: Dividend

Closing balance

(ii) Items of Other Comprehensive income:

(a) Foreign currency translation reserve
Opening balance
Add: Effect of foreign exchange rate variations

Closing balance

Total

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
331.85 331.85
(2,033.70) (2,236.34)
334.25 202.64
(3,510.92) -
(5,210.37) (2,033.70)
5,158.44 5,178.95
(13.21) (20.51)
5,145.23 5,158.44
266.71 3,456.59




Rain Carbon Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31,2020
Note 12: Non-current borrowings
A. Bonds
- Secured
7.25% Senior secured notes (due for repayment in April 2025) 40,123.60 39,645.27
40,123.60 39,645.27
B. Term loans
From other parties
- Unsecured 0.28 0.28
0.28 0.28
Total [A+B] 40,123.88 39,645.55




Rain Carbon Inec.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

- All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 16: Other income

Interest income

Interest on loans and advances
Dividend income from non-current investments
Other non-operating income

Miscellaneous income

Total

Note 17: Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Total

Note 18: Finance costs

Interest expense
Other borrowing costs

Total

Note 19: Other expenses

Insurance
Rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance

Consultancy charges
Payment to auditors
Directors' sitting fees

Loss on redemption of senior secured notes
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Payment to auditors comprises (excluding GST):

Statutory Audit
Total

Note 20: Tax expense

Current tax

(i) Tax for current year

Net current tax
Deferred tax
Total

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
2,958.78 2,955.35
590.63 354.79
1,153.14 736.37
4,702.55 4,046.51
103.02 105.84
103.02 105.84
2,954.20 2,976.84
134.83 131.69
3,089.03 3,108.53
5.28 -
0.02 -

- 1.11
(0.53) (58.76)
13.34 15.04
10.83 -

1,174.49 716.32
1,203.43 673.71
(113.50) -
(113.50) -
85.29 (45.25)
(28.21) (45.25)




Rain Carbon Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 21: Related Party Disclosures

a) Names of related parties and description of relationship

SL No Relationship

Name

(a) |List of related parties where control exists
(i) |Ultimate Holding Company
Holding Company

1 Rain Industries Limited [RIL]
2 Rain Commodities (USA) Inc [RCUSA]

(b) |Other related parties where transactions have taken place during the

year/balances exists at year end

(i) |Entities under common control

Rain Carbon Holdings, LLC {[RCH]
Rain CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited [RCCVL]

Rain CII Carbon LLC [RCC]

Rain Carbon Germany GMBH [RCGG]
Rain Carbon BVBA [RBVBA]

Rain Carbon GMBH [RCG]

Rain Carbon Poland Sp. z. 0. 0

S e RV R S S

b) Transactions with related parties:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Interest Income
a) RCUSA 11.28 0.64
b) RCC 2,947.49 2,954.70
Interest Expenditure
a) RCC 9.52 -
b) RCUSA - 17.30
Global Serive cost
a) RCC 625.21 507.33
Dividend Paid
a) RCUSA 3,510.92 -
Management Fees expenses
a) RCC 50.80 20.85
b) RIL 22593 -
c) RCUSA 54.95 -
d) RBVBA 65.83 50.72
e) RCGG 106.23 -
) RCG 45.74 13591
Revenue from services
a) RCC 321.10 206.66
b) RCCVL 147.87 90.07
c)RCG 300.81 165.15
d) Rain Carbon Poland 10.08 -
e) RBVBA 147.16 92.53
Dividend Received
a) RCH 590.63 354.79




Rain Carbon Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

(¢) The Company has the following dues from / to related parties:

As at As at

Particulars December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Loans from

a) RCC 341.78 -
Management fees receivable

a) RCCVL 82.69 87.74

b) RCG 175.39 403.23

¢)RCC 49.96 22.42

d) RBVBA 128.75 248.24

¢) Rain Carbon Canada Inc 95.80 31.75

) Rain Carbon Poland 9.93 -
Accrued interest payable

a) RCC 9.50 -
Dividend Payable

a) RCUSA 534.96 -
Loan given

a) RCUSA - 170.31

b) RCC 40,196.29 39,520.04
Interest receivable

a) RCUSA - 0.64

b) RCC 740.68 728.22
Amounts payable to

a) RCC 1,668.00 1,164.54

b) RIL 60.40 -

¢) RCGG 106.85 -

d) RCG 197.88 149.26

¢) RBVBA 54.09 49.65




Rain Carbon Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate Information

Rain Carbon Inc. (“RCI”™) (“the Company”) has been incorporated to carry on the businesses of
producing calcined petroleum coke (CPC), trading metallic and/or non-metallic substances, and
investing in entities engaged in such businesses.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. (“RCUSA™), which in
turn is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rain Industries Limited (“RIL” or “the Ultimate Holding
Company”), a company incorporated in India and listed on the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and BSE Limited. The Company was originally incorporated as a Limited Liability Company
in the State of Delaware, United States of America on September 15, 2010. During the year ended
December 31, 2013, the Company has been converted into a Delaware Corporation. Upon completion
of conversion process, the authorized share capital of the Company consists of 5,000 shares.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

(i) Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the
Act.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Relevant Ind AS
effective as on the Company’s annual reporting date (December 31, 2021) has been applied. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on February 22, 2022.

(ii) Functional and presentation currency

The Functional currency of the Company is US Dollars (USD). These Standalone financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupees (INR). All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions,
unless otherwise indicated.

(iii) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the fol]owing:

Items Measurement basis

Derivative financial instruments Fair value

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

(refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

Non-cash distribution liability Fair value

Net defined benefit asset/liability Fair value of plan assets less present
value of defined benefit plan

Borrowings Amortised cost using effective interest

rate method




Rain Carbon Ine.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

(iv) Use of estimates

In preparing these Standalone financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results may differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis and appropriate changes are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are reflected in the period
in which such changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are included in the following notes:

~ Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

— Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used

—~ Useful life of property, plant and equipment

— Impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets

— Expected Credit loss - provision for doubtful debts

Current and Non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i) It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s
normal operating cycle

ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded

iil) It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date or

iv) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria

i) Itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle
il) Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded
iii) It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date or



Rain Carbon Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash or cash equivalents. The Company's operating cycle is within a period of 12 months.

b) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

¢) Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers
and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from sale of goods and services are recognised at the point in time when control of the goods
is transferred to the customer. The revenue is measured on the basis of the consideration defined in
the contract with a customer, including variable consideration, such as discounts, volume rebates, or
other contractual reductions.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised when the related services are performed in accordance
with contract terms.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

d) Other income

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method on time proportion
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/professional valuation less accumulated depreciation.
Cost includes directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including its purchase price, import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Subsequent
expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed asset is capitalised only if it increases the future
benefits from the existing assets beyond its previously assessed standards of performance.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or
loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards acquisition of tangible fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are
shown under other non-current assets as capital advances.

Depreciation on all the tangible fixed assets is provided using the straight-line method based on the
useful life of the assets as prescribed by Schedule 1 to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the assets are
sold or disposed.

Gains and losses on disposal of tangible assets are determined as the difference between net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount, and are presented in the Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.



Rain Carbon Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

f) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the
prevailing year end rates. The resultant gain/loss upon such restatement along with the gain/loss on
account of foreign currency transactions are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In respect
of items covered by forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the inception of
such a forward exchange contract is amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract. Any
profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such a forward contract is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

g) Investments

Non-current investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for diminution, other than
temporary, if any, in the value of such investments.

h) Tax expense

Current tax is determined based on the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
year. Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences being the difference between the taxable
income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods subject to consideration of prudence. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward of losses are not recognised unless there is a virtual certainty that there
will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

i) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

j) Dividend declared

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Rain Cements Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Rain Cements Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheet as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December 31, 2021, and profit and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements Section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as applicable under
applicable laws and regulations.

Registered Office:

B S R & Associates (a partnership firm with Registration No. BA63226) converted into B S R & Associates
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LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8182) with effect from October 14, 2013 14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco [T Park 4, Nesco
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Independent Auditors’ report (continued)
Management's and the Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.
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Independent Auditors’ report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on January 04, 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on December 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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Independent Auditors’ report (continued)
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

f) Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at December 31, 2021 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 34 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from November 08, 2016 to December 30, 2016 have not been
made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended
December 31, 2021.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registra;t»ion Number: 116231W/ W-100024
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Vikash Somani
Partner
Membership Number: 061272
UDIN: 22061272ADAYOP1810

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 18 February 2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of Rain Cements
Limited (“the Company™) on the AS financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2021, we
report that:

(M

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this
program, certain fixed assets were physically verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noted on such verification. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its fixed
assets.

(¢) According to the information and explanations give to us and records examined by us and based
on the confirmation obtained regarding property mortgaged as security we report that, the title
deeds of immovable properties as disclosed in the Note 3 to the financial statements, are held in
the name of the Company.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, have been physically verified
by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.
The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not
material. For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, paragraph
3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of the loans and guarantees
given. Further, there are no investments made and security given in respect of which provisions of
Section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73, 74, 75
and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent notified. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v)
of the order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government of India for maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Income-tax,
Duty of Customs, Goods and Services Tax, cess and any other material statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Income-tax, Duty
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements (continued)

of Customs, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues that were in
arrears as at December 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Provident fund,

Employees’ state insurance, Duty of Customs, Goods and Services Tax, Cess which have not
been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any disputes. However, the Company
has the following disputed dues with respect to Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise and Value added tax:

Name of the Nature of the | Amount | Period to Forum where dispute is
Statute Dues (Rs. which the pending
millions) amount
relates
Andhra Pradesh Sales tax 8.15 1991-92 | Honorable High Court of
General Sales Tax 1992-93 Andhra Pradesh
Act, 1957 Penalty 18.77 | 2002-03 | Honorable High Court of
Andhra Pradesh
Sales tax 4.25 1995-96 Honorable High Court of
(1.41) Andhra Pradesh
Central Sales Tax Penalty 14.60 1996-97 Honorable High Court of
Act, 1956 (4.74) 1997-98 Andhra Pradesh
1998-99
1999-2000
Penalty 7.84 2018-19 Deputy Commissioner
(1.96)
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax* 24.72 Jul-08 Customs, Excise and Service
Tax Appellate Tribunal
Excise  duty 12.11 | Oct-12to | Customs, Excise and Service
and Penalty (7.46) Nov-12 Tax Appellate Tribunal
Central Excise Act | Excise  duty 75.41 | Aug 2014 to | Customs, Excise and Service
and penalty (75.31) | November | Tax Appellate Tribunal
2016
Telangana Tax on | Entry tax 14.45 2012-13 Honorable High Court of
Entry of Goods into (3.61) 2015-16 | Telangana
local areas act, 2001. 2016-17
2017-18
Telangana Tax on | Entry tax 2.8 2011-12 Appellate Deputy
Entry of Goods into (1.36) 2013-14 Commissioner, Commercial
local areas act, 2001. 2014-15 Taxes
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements (continued)

(viii)

(ix)

9]

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Nature of Statue Nature of Amount Period to Forum where dispute
Dues (Rs. which the is pending
Million) amount relates

Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax and 2.56 | AY 2008-09 | High Court
interest

Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax and 4690 | AY 2009-10 | Deputy commissioner
interest of Income tax

Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax and 16720 | AY 2011-12to | Income tax Appellate
interest AY 2012-13 | Tribunal

Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax and 31.70 | AY 2017-18 Commissioner of
interest Income Tax (Appeals)

*Interest will be levied separately, as applicable.
Amount in parenthesis represents payment under protest.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank. The Company
did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings from financial institutions and Government, nor has
it issued any debentures during the year.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in Note 39 to the financial
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24, Related party disclosures specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements (continued)

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with the directors or
persons connected with him as contemplated under the provisions of Section 192 of the Act.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-]A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231 W/ W-100024

e

7

e

~s

Vikash Somani

Partner

Membership No.: 061272
UDIN: 22061272ADAYOP1810

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 18, 2022



B SR & Associates LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Rain Cements
Limited for the year ended December 31, 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 1(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
Section of our Report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Rain Cements
Limited (“the Company™) as of December 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at December 31,
2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities inciude the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating eftectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Rain Cements
Limited for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 116231 W/ W-100024
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Vikash Somani
Partner
Membership Number: 061272
UDIN: 22061272ADAYOP1810

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 18 February 2022



Rain Cements Limited
Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Particulars Note Asat Asat
December 31, 2021 December 31,2020
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 4,069.52 3,672.00
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 116.49 768.20
(c) Right of use assets 4 31.25 20.65
(d) Other intangible assets S 0.01 0.25
(e) Financial assets
(1) Investments 6 318.52 318.55
(i1) Loans 7 326.39 216.97
(f) Non current tax assets (net) 8 207.14 210.47
(g) Other non-current assets 9 44.70 45.08
5,114.02 5,252.17
2. Current assets
(2) Inventories 10 1,357.02 1,251.85
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 11 250.44 254.98
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 468.75 126.32
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 2,164.44 1,764.59
(iv) Loans 13 1,372.48 554.86
(v) Other financial assets 14 100.34 71.96
(¢) Other current assets 15 308.91 287.14
6,022.38 4,311.70
TOTAL 11,136.40 9,563.87
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16 298.05 298.05
(b) Other equity 17 7,243.51 5,545.67
7,541.56 5,843.72
2. Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 296.22 513.85
(b) Provisions 19 239.83 221.30
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 25 271.29 321.39
807.34 1,062.54
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 21
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 13.64 12.29
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises. 578.74 553.48
(ii) Other financial liabilities 22 1,395.18 1,205.06
(b) Provisions 23 28.47 28.48
(c) Other current liabilities 24 349.27 325.08
(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 20 422.21 533.22
2,787.50 2,657.61
TOTAL 11,136.40 9,563.87
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: [16231W/ W-100024
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Rain Cements Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended December 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particul
articutars Note December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
1 Income
Revenue from operations 26 13,841.50 10,285.71
Other income 27 252.32 162.44
Total income 14,093.82 10,448.15
2 Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 28 1,839.19 1,101.85
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 29 30.76 111.89
Employee benefits expense 30 477.43 492 .43
Finance costs 31 27.70 26.29
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,4&5 565.18 546.26
Other expenses 32 8,832.95 6,442 .21
Total expenses 11,773.21 8,720.93
3 Profit before tax (1-2) 2,320.61 1,727.22
4 Tax expense / (benefit) 33
Current tax 670.57 501.55
Deferred tax (49.51) (67.77)
621.06 433.78
5 Profit for the Year (3-4) 1,699.56 1,293.44
6 Other Comprehensive (loss)/Income
(i) Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (2.30) 5.26
(b) Income tax relating to Remeasurement as defined benefit plans 0.58 (1.32)
(1.72) 3.94
(ii) Item that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Effective portion of gains/(losses) on hedging instrument in cash - (0.78)
flow hedge
(b) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or - -
loss
Total Other Comprehensive (loss)/Income for the year (a+b) (1.72) 3.16
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (5+6) 1,697.84 1,296.60
Earnings per share (Face value of INR 10/- each)
Basic and Diluted 36 57.02 4340
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
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Rain Cements Limited
Statement of cash flow for the year ended December 31, 2021
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,320.61 1,727.22
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 565.18 546.26
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.90 221
Finance costs 27.70 26.29
Interest income (176.50) (121.84)
Rental income - (1.33)
Dividend income from current investments - (6.01)
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back (48.05) (14.43)
Provision for impairment of receivables 14.13 0.70
383.36 431.85
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,703.97 2,159.08
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
Inventories (105.17) 627.22
Trade receivables (9.59) (12.15)
Loans, other non current financials assets and other non current assets 0.49) 3.01
Other current assets (21.77) (83.74)
Trade payables 74.66 (40.42)
Other current liabilities 24.19 (153.10)
Other financial liabilities 148.44 302.61
Provisions ' 1.92 112.19 820 651.61
Cash generated from operations 2,816.16 2,810.69
Income taxes paid, net ‘ (778.21) (388.20)
Net cash from operating activities 2,037.95 2,422.49
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Net of capital advances and capital creditors) (340.98) (689.10)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4.92 38.06
Net proceeds from current investments - 260.00
Proceeds/(Investment) in National saving certificate 0.03 0.01)
Placement of bank deposits (399.85) (1,625.62)
Inter corporate deposits placed (927.67) (150.92)
Interest received 148.12 72.38
Rental Income received - 1.33
Dividends received on current investments - (1,515.43) 6.01 (2,087.88)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,515.43) (2,087.88)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non-current borrowings - 199.15
Repayment of non-current borrowings (132.07) (156.91)
Lease rentals paid (28.60) (8.10)
Interest on lease rentals paid (1.32) (1.71)
Interest and other borrowing costs paid (18.09) (19.86)
Dividend paid including tax on dividend - (280.17)
Repayment of Buyer's credit - (266.27)
(180.08) (533.86)
Net cash used in financing activities (180.08) (533.86)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 342.44 (199.25)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 126.32 325.56
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 12) 468.76 126.32




Notes:

1) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard - 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'.
2) Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:

Cash and cash equivalents - closing balance 468.76 126.32

Cash on hand 0.14 . 0.13

Cheques/ drafts on hand - 1.32

Balances with banks:

- in current accounts 158.61 9.77

- in deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 month or less) 310.00 115.10
46875 12632

e ———

3) Comparative figures of the previous year, where necessary, have been regrouped to conform to those of the current year.

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ) Rain Cements Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 11 6231W/ W-100024 CIN: U23209TG1999PLC031631
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Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021

Note 1:

Note 2:

a)
®

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Corporate Information

Rain Cements Limited (‘the Company’) was originally incorporated on May 04, 1999 and is domiciled in India. The Company is engaged in the
business of manufacture and sale of cement. Company's production facilities are located at Suryapet district in the State of Telangana, Kurnool
district in the State of Andhra Pradesh and Packing facility at Bellary district of Karnataka State.

Rain Cements Limited is a wholly owned Subsidiary of Rain Industries Limited.
Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements
Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Relevant Ind AS effective as on the Company's annual reporting date
December 31, 2021 have been applied. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on February 18, 2022.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-
off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at
fair value:

- Derivative financial instruments,

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) and

- Non-cash distribution liability.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and appropriate changes are made
as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are reflected in the period
in which such changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are included in the following notes:

a) measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions (Refer Note 38)

b) recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources
(Refer Note 34)

c) useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (Refer Note 2(f))

d) impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets (Refer Note 42)

¢) decommissioning liability (Refer Note 2(f))

f) expected credit loss - provision for doubtful debts (Refer Note 42)

=0
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Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)

Note 2:

a)
(\]

vi)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of financial statements (continued)
Current and non current classification
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. Itis expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. It is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. Itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a
liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents. The Company's
operating cycle is within a period of 12 months.

Measurement of Fair values:

Accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial and non-financial assets. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the

assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company engages with external valuers for measurement of fair values in the absence of quoted prices in active markets.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable ,

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For changes that have occurred between levels in the hierarchy during the period the Company re-assesses categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)

Note 2:

(b)

()

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any noncontrolling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Company elects whether to measure the noncontrolling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:
- Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance
with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

- Assets (or disposal Companies) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

- Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does
not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent to
its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets:

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.c., the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) as described above
are measured at Fail value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL). This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.




Financial assets: Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at an individual asset level because this
best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:
— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether

management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration

of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;
— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;
— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are
managed;
— how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and
— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales
activity.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)

Note 2:
(©

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time
and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

- In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the

instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

— prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents
unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature
that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair
value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost : These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized

cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI : These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest method, foreign

exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI : These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless

the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)

Note 2: Significant accounting policies (continued)

©

@

®

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,

such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally

concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the
customer.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer. The revenue is measured on
the basis of the consideration defined in the contract with a customer, including variable consideration, such as discounts, volume rebates, or other
contractual reductions.

Variable consideration includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts etc. It is estimated at contract inception considering the terms of various
schemes with customers and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at end of each
reporting period.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised when the related services are performed in accordance with contract terms.
Rental income is recognised on a time-apportioned basis in accordance with the underlying substance of the relevant contract.

Revenues which arise from the Company’s operating activities, principal or ancillary, but which are not arising from sale of products/services
rendered are included as other operating revenues.

Other Income

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method on time proportion method.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the
dividend.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/deemed cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes directly attributable costs to the
acquisition of the items including its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates,
any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed asset is capitalised only if it increases
the future benefits from the existing assets beyond its previously assessed standards of performance.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major

components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or
loss.

Advances paid towards acquisition of tangible fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown under long-term loans and advances as
capital advances.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation on all the tangible fixed assets is provided based on the technical evaluation and assessment, the Company believes that the useful
lives adopted by it best represent the period over which an asset is expected to be available for use. Accordingly, for these assets, the useful lives
estimated by the Company are different from those prescribed in the Schedule.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the assets are sold or disposed.

Gains and losses on disposal of tangible property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount, and are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted

prospectively, if appropriate.

Asset Description Useful Life
Freehold Mining land 125 years

Buildings 3 to 77 years
Plant & Machinery 2 to 25 years
Furnitures & Fixtures 8 to 10 years
Vehicles 5to 11 years
Office Equipment's 3 to § years

Provision for site restoration

The Company provides for the estimated expenditure required to restore quarries and mines. The total estimate of restoration expenses is
apportioned over the estimate of mineral reserves and a provision is made based on minerals extracted during the year.

Site restoration expenses is incurred on an on going basis and until the closure of the quarries and mines. The actual expenses may vary based on
the nature of restoration and the estimate of restoration expenditure.

The total estimate of restoration expenses is reviewed periodically, on the basis of technical estimates.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Asset Description Useful Life
Software 3 years
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Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost (including prime cost and other overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition) and net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. Raw materials, packing
materials and stores and spares are valued at cost computed on moving weighted average basis, after providing for obsolescence, if any. The cost
includes purchase price, inward freight and other incidental expenses net of refundable duties, levies and taxes, where applicable. Raw materials,
packing materials and other supplies held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices
have declined, and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable value.

Finished goods and work in progress are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and
comprises material, labour and applicable overhead expenses. The net realisable value of materials in process is determined with reference to the
selling prices of related finished goods Stores and spares are valued at cost determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses

Goods in transit are valued at cost.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets (Cash Generating Unit or CGU) that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. The recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU (or the asset). Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

The Company’s corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To
determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the respective financial years, if the carrying amount of the assets or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.

If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed
and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of amortised historical cost as per requirement of Ind AS 36 "Impairment
of Assets".

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost. At each reporting date, the
Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired” when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

-significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due over a reasonable period of credit

-the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;
-it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are
the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month expected credit
losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward- looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than the reasonable period of time which is
usually the credit period. The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); and - the financial asset is 180 days or more past due.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are
deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency are restated at the prevailing year end rates. The resultant gain/loss upon such restatement along with the gain/loss
on account of foreign currency transactions are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In respect of items covered by forward exchange
contracts, the premium or discount arising at the inception of such a forward exchange contract is amortised as expense or income over the life of
the contract. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such a forward contract is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes specified monthly contribution towards employee provident fund to Government administered provident fund scheme, which
is a defined contribution scheme. The Company’s contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which the employee renders the related service. The Company has no further obligations beyond its monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at each balance sheet date. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes
in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and nonroutine settlements; and

- Net interest expense or income.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or curtailed, the resulting change in the benefit that relates to the past service (‘past service cost' or 'past
service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the Statement of profit or loss. The Company recognises the gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when settlement occurs.
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Compensated absence policy :

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accumulating
compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or encash the leaves during the period of employment or retirement or at termination of
employment. The Company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases
this entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. The Company recognises accumulated compensated
absences based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method carried out in accordance with Ind AS-19 "Employee Benefits" at the
end of the year. Non-accumulating compensated absences are recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

Other long-term employee benefits

The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary as at
December 31st every year using projected unit credit method carried out in accordance with Ind AS-19 "Employee Benefits" at the end of the year,
on the additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense
on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These
benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for
employee services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

Leases

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has not been restated
and continues to be reported under Ind AS 17.

As a lessee

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful
life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those

of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-
measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses
its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

» Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

» Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

« Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

« The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the
company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of real estate properties that have a lease

term of 12 months. The company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Under Ind AS 17

In the comparative period, the determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership vest in the Company are classified
as finance leases. Such leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value and the present value of the minimum lease
payments and the corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate.
Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding
liability for each year.

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor are recognised as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s
expected inflationary cost increases.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Earnings per share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s Earnings Per Share (EPS) comprise net profit after tax (and includes the post tax effect of

any extra ordinary items). The number of shares used in computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they have been issued at a later date. The number
of shares used for computing the diluted EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year after considering the dilutive
potential equity shares.

Tax expense

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended
to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

In case of tax payable as Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961, the credit available under the Act in
respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income
tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an
asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)

Note 2:

(p)

(9)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Tax expense (continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each

reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Statement of cash flows and cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of
the Company are segregated.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the
present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. These are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements

for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
requirements for revenue recognition.

Dividend declared

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. Interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by
the Board of directors of the Company.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward commodity contracts, to
hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit and loss, except for the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to statement of profit and loss when the hedge item affects statement
of profit and loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or
non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

- Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment;

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognized firm commitment;

- Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to
apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk
being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the
exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly
effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Cash flow hedge

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised
in OCI and accumulated in the other equity under ‘effective portion of cash flow hedges’. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the
derivative that is recognised in OCI is limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item, determined on a present value basis, from

inception of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in statement of profit and
loss.

The Company designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of forward exchange contracts as the hedging instrument in cash flow
hedging relationships. The change in fair value of the forward element of forward exchange contracts (‘forward points’) is separately accounted for
as a cost of hedging and recognised separately within equity.
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Rain Cements Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 4: Right of use assets

Building
Year ended December 31,2020
Gross Carrying Amount
At the beginning of the year -
Additions 30.08
Disposals -
At the end of the year 30.08
Accumulated amortisation
At the beginning of the year -
Amortisation charged during the year 9.43
Disposals -
At the end of the year 9.43
Net Carrying amount as at December 31, 2020 20.65
Year ended December 31,2021
Gross Carrying Amount
At the beginning of the year 30.08
Additions 20.53
Disposals 0.36
At the end of the year 50.25
Accumulated amortisation
At the beginning of the year 9.43
Amortisation charged during the year 9.57
Disposals -
At the end of the year 19.00
Net Carrying amount as at December 31, 2021 31.25
Note 5:Other intangible assets:

Software
Year ended December 31, 2020
Gross Carrying Amount
At the beginning of the year 5.15
Additions -
Disposals -
At the end of the year 5.15
Accumulated amortisation
At the beginning of the year 426
Amortisation charged during the year 0.64
Disposals -
At the end of the year 4.90
Net Carrying amount as at December 31, 2020 0.25
Year ended December 31,2021
Gross Carrying Amount
At the beginning of the year 5.15
Additions 0.10
Disposals -
At the end of the year 5.25
Accumulated amortisation
At the beginning of the year 4.90
Amortisation charged during the year 0.34
Disposals -
At the end of the year 5.24
Net Carrying amount as at December 31, 2021 0.01




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 6: Non-current investments

A. Investments in subsidiary
(Unquoted instruments valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Subsidiary

Renuka Cement Limited

7,498,483 (December 31, 2020: 7,498,483) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up
Less: Provision for Impairment in value of Investments in subsidiary

B. Investments in others:

(Unquoted instruments valued as fair value through profit and loss)

Equity instruments

Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corporation Limited

134,000 (December 31, 2020: 134,000) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up
Government securities

~ National Savings Certificates

Total

Note:
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of provision for impairment in value of investments

Note 7: Loans
Security deposits
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated, valued at cost)

Electricity deposit
Inter-corporate deposits *
Other security deposits
Total

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
42238 422.38
(120.00) (120.00)
16.00 16.00
0.14 0.17
318.52 318.55
438.52 438.55
120.00 120.00
195.30 195.78
110.00 -
21.09 21.19
326.39 216.97

* Inter corporate deposits of INR 110.00 (Previous year: Nil) have been placed with Housing Development Finance Corporation for

various maturity dates with an average interest rate of 4.75% p.a

Note 8: Non current tax assets (net)

Advance tax
(net of provision for tax of INR 992.52) (December 31, 2020 : INR 781.02)

Note 9: Other non-current assets

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Capital advances

Balances with government authorities

Total

207.14 21047
207.14 210.47
8.32 9.81
36.38 35.27
44.70 45.08




Rain Cements Limited .
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Note 10: Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials 115.39 112.52
Work-in-progress 494.77 509.32
Finished goods 76.68 92.89
Stores and spares 183.39 173.15
Packing materials 51.09 54.71
Fuel 435.70 309.26
Total 1,357.02 1,251.85
Goods-in-transit, included above
Raw materials 0.63 0.50
Stores and spares 0.95 1.30
Fuel 20.96 37.13
Total 22.54 38.93
Note 11: Trade receivables
Trade Receivables considered good - Secured 200.55 162.28
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 49.89 92.70
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 36.64 22.51
287.08 277.49
Less: Provision for loss allowance (36.64) (22.51)
Total 250.44 254.98

(i) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person
nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a

member.

The movement in the loss allowance for impairment is respect of trade receivable during the year was as follows




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31,2020
Opening balance (22.51) (21.81)
Loss allowance recognised during the year (14.13) (0.70)
Closing balance (36.64) (22.51)
Note 12: Cash and bank balances
A. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.14 0.13
Cheques/ drafts on hand - 1.32
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 158.61 9.77
- in deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 month or less) 310.00 115.10
468.75 126.32
B. Other bank balances
Balances held as margin money against guarantees and other commitments 80.50 13.39
Balances in term deposit accounts with maturity period of more than three
months 2,083.94 1,751.20
and not more than twelve months
2,164.44 1,764.59
Total [A+B] 2,633.19 1,890.91
Note 13: Loans
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Inter-corporate deposits 1,372.28 554.62
Advance to employees 0.20 0.24
Total 1372.48 554.86
Note:

Inter corporate deposits of INR 1,372.28 (Previous year: INR 554.62) have been placed with Housing Development Finance Corporation

for various maturity dates with an average interest rate of 4.75% p.a

Note 14: Other current financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Interest accrued on deposits 100.34 71.96
100.34 71.96
Note 15: Other current assets
Prepaid expenses 17.80 16.71
Balances with Government authorities 12.63 10.08
Advance to supplier and service providers 277.26 257.00
Others 1.22 3.35
Total 308.91 287.14




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 16: Equity share capital

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Authorised share capital:
Equity shares of INR 10 each 50,000,000 500.00 50,000,000 500.00
Total 50,000,000 500.00 50,000,000 500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully-paid up capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each 29,805,000 298.05 29,805,000 298.05
Total 29,805,000 298.05 29,805,000 298.05
Notes:
(i) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Particulars Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
As at beginning of the year 29,805,000 298.05 29,805,000 298.05
Equity shares issued /(bought back) during the year
As at end of the year 29,805,000 298.05 29,805,000 298.05

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 each per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. In case of interim dividend the profits are distributed based on approval of Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential

amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

During the previous financial year, dividend @ INR 9.40 per share has been declared and paid. (Current year - Nil).
The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on October 23, 2020, declared an interim dividend of INR 9.40 per equity share
i.e. 94% on face value of INR 10 per equity share fully paid up (INR 280.17 million for the financial year ended December 31, 2020).

(iii) Shares held by holding company

. As at As at
Particulars December 31, 2021 December 31,2020
Number of Amount  Number of Amount
shares shares
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up held by
Hol(%mg company - Rain Industries Limited., along with its 2.98,05,000 298.05 2.98,05,000 298,05
nominees
2,98,05,000 298.05 2,98,05,000 298.05
(iv) Details of equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares
As at As at
December 31,2021 December 31,2020
o, 0,
Name of the shareholder Number of % Number of %
shares shares
Rain Industries Limited along with its nominees 29,805,000 100% 29,805,000 100%




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Note 17: Other equity
(i) Reserves and surplus
(a) Securities premium account

Opening balance 424.33 42433
Closing balance ' 424.33 424.33

(b) General reserve
Opening balance 612.48 612.48
Closing balance 612.48 612.48

(c) Retained earnings

Opening balance 4,526.90 3,513.63
Add: Profit for the year 1,699.56 1,293.44

6,226.46 4,807.07
Less : Interim dividend - 280.17
Closing balance 6,226.46 4,526.90

(d) Remeasurements of defined benefit plan

Opening balance (18.04) (21.98)
Add: Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/(asset), net of tax (1.72) 3.94
Closing balance (19.76) (18.04)

(e) Cash flow hedge reserve

Opening balance - 0.78
Add: Recognised in the current period - -
Less: Reclassified to profit and loss account - (0.78)

Closing balance - -

Total 7,243.51 5,545.67

Nature of Reserves
(a) Security premium :
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities premium. It will be utilised in

accordance with the provisions of the Act, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares or
debentures, write-off equity related expenses like underwriting costs etc.

(b) General reserve :
General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. There is no
policy of regular transfer. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not
an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to retained
earnings.

(c) Retained earnings :

Retained earnings represents the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends
or other distributions paid to investors.

(d) Remeasurement of defined benefit liability

Remeasurements of defined benefit (liability)/ asset comprises actuarial gains and losses and return on p an assets (excluding
©./ . interest income). 2




Rain Cements Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 18: Non-current borrowings

Deferred payment liabilities

-Unsecured
Less: Current portion of non-current borrowings disclosed under
Note 22 - Other current financial liabilities

- Secured
Less: Current portion of non-current borrowings disclosed under Note
22 - Other current financial liabilities

- Lease liabilities

- Unsecured
Less: Current portion of non-current borrowings disclosed under Note
22 - Other current financial liabilities

Total

Deferred payment liabilities

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
427.26 510.36
(138.90) (83.12)
288.36 427.24
73.94 141.82
(73.94) (67.89)
- 73.93
12.29 21.98
(4.43) (9.30)
7.86 12.68
296.22 513.85

Sales tax deferment represents interest free liability. Balance outstanding is repayable in 43 structured monthly instalments as per deferm

schedule (December 31, 2020: 55 installments).

Secured Loan

During the previous year 2020, the Company availed a loan of INR 19.91 crores from Axis Bank Limited towards purchase of Earth Mov
Equipment such as Wheel Loaders, Tippers & Excavators. The loan is repayable in 35 equated monthly installments and is secured by First :
exclusive charge on assets financed by Axis Bank Limited. The loan carries an interest rate of 8.50% p.a. (December 31, 2020 : 8.50% p.a).

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Non current

Particulars . Current borrowings Total
borrowings
Opening balance at the beginning of the year 513.85 160.31 674.16
Borrowings to be repaid within 12 months of the reporting data (217.27) 21727 -
Borrowings repaid during the year - (160.31) (160.31)
Others (0.36) - (0.36)
Closing balance at the end of the year 296.22 217.27 513.49
Refer Note 35 for reconciliation of Lease liabilities
Refer Note 41 for liquidity risk
Note 19: Non-current provisions
Provision for employee benefits:
- Compensated absences (refer note 38) 31.08 30.59
- Gratuity (refer note 38) 96.15 92.40
Provision - others
- Mine restoration (Refer below note) 112.60 10431
Total 239.83 227.30
The movement in the mine restoration provision during the year was as follows:
As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Balance as at the beginning of the year 104.31 99.59
Unwinding of discount on Mine Restoration provision 8.29 472
Balance as at the end of the year 112.60 104.31
Provision has been recognised for cost associated with restoration of mines post extraction of limestone.
r




Rain Cements Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 20: Current tax liabilities (Net)

Provision for tax
(net of advance tax INR 1,928.76 (December 31,2020: INR 1,247.83)

Note 21: Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note below)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and small enterprises

Total

Refer Note 42 for liquidity risk

As at
December 31,2021

As at
December 31, 2020

422.21 533.22
422.21 533.22

13.64 12.29
578.74 553.48
592.38 565.77

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the
Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated
after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at December 31, 2021
has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the
Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’) is not expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any

supplier under the said MSMED Act.

Disclosures of dues to Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprises as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

(MSMED) Act, 2006

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accounting year.

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year.

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year; and

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of
a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

13.64

12.29

This information is required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and has been determined
to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. Auditors have placed reliance on such

information provided by the management.




Rain Cements Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 22: Other current financial liabilities

Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 18)
Trade and security deposits

Payables to employees

Deposits from contractors/customers

Provision for discounts

Others:

- Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment

- Retention money
Total

Refer note 42 for liquidity risk

Note 23: Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits:
- Compensated absences (refer note 38)
- Gratuity (refer note 38)

Total

Note 24: Other current liabilities

Statutory remittances
Contract Liability
Total

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
217.27 160.31
219.68 162.74
84.56 86.17
709.73 626.24
89.88 80.05
72.26 87.54
1.80 2.01
1,395.18 1,205.06
10.10 10.90
18.36 17.58
28.47 28.48
279.27 258.16
70.00 66.92
349.27 325.08
r P
g@,gn,/




Rain Cements Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 25: Deferred taxes

Deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use asset

Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits
Land indexation

Site restoration liability
Trade receivables
Lease liability

Net deferred tax liability

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
374.39 418.40

7.86 5.20

(39.19) (39.07)

(31.1D) (27.15)

(28.34) (25.07)

(9.22) (5.40)

(3.09) (5.53)

271.29 321.39

Movement in deferred tax assets / liabilities:

Particulars

Balance as at

Recognised in profit
or loss during the

Recognised in OCI

Balance as at

January 1, 2020 year during the year | December 31,2020

Property, plant and equipment 481.85 (63.45) - 418.40
Employee benefits (36.31) (4.08) 1.32 (39.07)
Land indexation (27.15) - - (27.15)
Site restoration liability (25.07) - - (25.07)
Trade receivables (5.49) 0.09 - (5.40)

Right of use asset - 5.20 - 5.20
Lease inability - (5.53) - (5.53)

387.83 (67.77) 1.32 321.39

Balance as at

Recognised in profit

Recognised in OCI

Particulars or loss during the Balance as at
January 1, 2021 . during the year | December 31,2021
period/year

Property, plant and equipment 418.40 (44.01) - 374.39
Employee benefits (39.07) 0.46 (0.58) (39.19)
Land indexation (27.15) (3.96) - (31.11)
Site restoration liability (25.07) (3.28) - (28.34)
Trade receivables (5.40) (3.82) - 9.22)

Right of use asset 5.20 2.66 - 7.86
Lease liability (5.53) 2.44 - (3.09)

321.39 (49.51) (0.58) 271.30




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended  For the year ended
December 31,2021 December 31, 2020

Note 26: Revenue from operations

Sale of products [Refer Note (i) below] 13,841.50 10,285.71
Revenue from operations 13,841.50 10,285.71
Notes:
(i) Sale of products comprises:
Sale of cement 13,841.50 10,285.71
Total 13,841.50 10,285.71
Contract assets and contract liabilities:
Contract assets recorded in balance sheet - -
Contract liabilities recorded in balance sheet 70.00 66.92
Reconciliation of revenue from sale of products with the contract price
Contract price (A) 16,533.99 11,821.44
Less - Reductions towards variable consideration components: (B)
Discounts (2,692.49) (1,535.73)
Revenue recognised (A-B) 13,841.50 10,285.71
Note 27: Other income
Interest from banks on deposits 170.72 108.98
Interest- others 5.78 12.86
Dividend income from current investments at FVTPL - 6.01
Other non-operating income:
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back 48.05 14.43
Miscellaneous income 27.77 20.16
Total 252.32 162.44
Note 28 : Cost of raw material consumed
Raw Material consumed :
Lime stone 366.99 263.86
Laterite 399.49 316.55
Gypsum 281.41 139.62
Iron ore 0.21 0.78
Dolomite/Bauxite 5.48 2.67
Fly ash 775.39 383.77
Others 12.21 -
Captive consumption of cement (1.99) (5.40)
Total 1,839.19 1,101.85
Note 29: Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 92.89 71.48
Work-in-progress 509.32 642.62
602.21 714.10
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 76.68
Work-in-progress 49477
571.45
Decrease in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 30.76
# {




Rain Cements Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 30: Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 38)
Staff welfare expense

Total

Note 31: Finance costs

Interest expense on borrowings
Interest expense on lease liability
Unwinding of mines restoration cost
Other borrowing cost

Total

Note 32: Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares
Consumption of packing materials
Power and fuel
Repairs and maintenance

- Plant and machinery

- Others
Insurance
Rent (refer note 35)
Rates and taxes
Communication expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Freight outward
Other selling and distribution expenses
Corporate social responsibility and other donations (refer note 37)
Consultancy charges
Payment to auditors [Refer Note below]
Directors' sitting fees
Commission to directors (refer note 39)
Provision for impairment of receivables
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Loss on foreign currency transactions and translation (net)
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

For the year ended

For the year ended

December 31,2021 December 31, 2020
427.62 445.06
40.11 40.54
9.70 6.83
477.43 492.43
13.02 17.64
1.32 1.71
8.29 4.72
5.07 2.22
27.70 26.29
340.20 235.78
704.32 386.68
3,229.68 2,377.57
173.94 158.31
95.06 88.12
27.40 22.51
49.02 47.02
29.00 23.60
10.66 6.24
24.77 21.69
2.44 2.66
3,607.18 2,647.07
274.04 214.63
24.16 25.78
104.54 73.27
2.40 2.45
0.94 0.77
25.00 20.00
14.13 0.70
0.90 2.21
6.82 1.30
86.35 83.85
8,832.95 6,442.21




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended  For the year ended
December 31,2021 December 31, 2020

Note:

Payments to the auditors comprise (excluding GST):

Audit fees 1.80 1.80
Limited review fees 0.60 0.60
Other services : - 0.05
Total 2.40 2.45

Note 33: Income tax

(i) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Current tax
(i) Tax for current year 670.57 490.99
(ii) Tax relating to earlier years - 10.56
Net current tax 670.57 501.55
Deferred tax (49.51) (67.77)
Total 621.06 433.78

(ii) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax 2,320.61 1,727.22

Enacted tax rate 25.17% 25.17%

Tax expense as per enacted tax rate 584.10 434.71

Effect of:

Tax impact on non-deductible expenses 36.96 6.49

Others - (7.42)
621.06 433.78

(iii) Income tax recognised directly in other comprehensive income:
a. Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

Before Tax (2.30) 5.26
Tax ‘ 0.58 (1.32)
Net of Tax (1.72) 3.93

(iv) The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by
the transfer pricing regulations under Sections 92-92F of the Income-Tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of
such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company continuously updates its documents
for the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year. The management is
of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact
on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense for the year and that of provision for taxation.

(v) On September 20, 2019 vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, the Government of India inserted
Section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act 1961 which provides domestic companies a non-reversible option to pay corporate
tax at reduced rates effective April 01, 2019, subject to certain conditions. The management has evaluated the options and
adopted the new tax rate of 25.17%. Accordingly, the Company remeasured its current tax expense for Assessment year
2020-21 and deferred tax asset/liability at the new effective tax rate prescribed by the aforesaid section.




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 34.: Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars

8.32 (December 31, 2020: INR.9.81]

As at As at
December 31, 2021| December 31, 2020

(D) Contingent liabilities
(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt:
- Income tax 264.37 174.50
- Sales tax, service tax and excise duty related matters under dispute 26.92 26.92
- Fuel surcharge adjustment levied by electricity distributing companies 34.57 34.57
- Others* 410.30 370.88

736.16 606.87
* The above liabilities are time barred as at 31 December 2021
(b) Corporate Guarantees issued
Disclosure of Corporate guarantees given as per provisions of Section 186(4) of the
Companies Act 2013
- As at the beginning of the year - Guarantee and contingent Liability 1,314.90 1,967.05
- Given during the year - Guarantee and contingent liability - -
- Settled/ expired during the financial year - Guarantee and contingent Liability 779.94 652.15
- As at the end of the year (restated at closing rate) - Guarantee and contingent Liability 534.96 1,314.90
The Company has provided a corporate guarantee against loan availed by Rain Industries Limited to the
extent of Rs. 534.96 (as at December 31, 2020: Rs.1,314.90) in respect of which the contingent liability is
Rs. 534.96 (as at December 31, 2020: Rs. 1,314.90). The loan has been availed by the ultimate holding
company for the purpose of investment in overseas subsidiaries. The movement is only on account of]
change in exchange rates and release of previous guarantee. (Refer note (a) below for security given by the
company)
(II) Commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account [net of capital advance INR 30.04 52.02

a) The immovable and movable properties of the Company, except for current assets of the Company present and future and assets charged with Axis Bank
Limited as disclosed in Note 18, are charged against loan availed by Rain Industries Limited for purpose of investment in Rain Commodities USA Inc. No

guarantee commission has been charged by the Company based on the requirements of the bank.

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has
reviewed and ensured that there are no material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts which needs to be provided for in the books of account

other than the provisions already made in books of account.

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations including legal proceedings initiated in the ordinary course of business. The Company does not
expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material and adverse effect on its financial position, except as disclosed above and accordingly no

adjustment in respect thereof is expected.

Note 35: Leases

The Company has entered into various operating lease agreements for assets comprising of storage and other facilities.

The following is the rental expense recorded for short-term leases, variable leases and low value leases for the year ended December 31, 2021

Particulars Year ended Year ended
December 31, 20211 December 31, 2020
Short term lease expense 49.02 47.02
Low value lease expense - -
Variable lease expenses (other than short term) - -
Total lease expense 49.02 47.02

—=
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
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Note 35: Leases (continued)
Following are the changes in the lease liability for the year ended December

. As at As at
Particulars December 31,2021] December 31,2021
As at January 1, 2021 21.98 30.08
Additions 18.91 -
Finance cost accrued during the year 1.32 1.71
Deletions - -
Payment of lease liabilities (29.92) (5.81)
Balance as at December 31, 2021 12.29 21.98
The following is the cash outflow on leases during the year ended December 3
Particulars Year ended Year ended

December 31,2021 December 31, 2020

Payment of lease liabilities (excluding interest) 28.60 7.86
Interest on lease liabilities 1.32 1.95
Variable lease expenses other than short term 49.02 47.02
Total cash outflow on leases 78.94 56.83
The future minimum lease payments and their present values as at December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Present value of Minimum
Particulars minimum ~Future lease

interest

lease payments payments
- Not later than 1 year 4.60 0.86 5.46
- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 6.39 2.60 8.99
- Beyond § years 0.08 0.20 0.28

Note 36: Earnings per Share (EPS)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
December 31, 2021 | December 31,2020

a. Profit for the year 1,699.56 1,293.44

b. Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10/- each outstanding during the year 29,805,000 29,805,000

Earnings per Share

c. Basic and Diluted - [a]/[b] - (INR) 57.02 43.40

Note 37: Corporate social responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social responsibility (CSR) Committee has been formed by the Company. The proposed areas
for CSR activities, as per the CSR policy of the Company are promotion of education, rural development activities, medical facilities, employment and
ensuring environmental sustainability which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. Expenditure incurred under Section 135 of the

Companies Act, 2013 on CSR activities are as below:

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2021 is Rs.21.99 (December 31, 2020: Rs. 9.45)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

Particulars .
In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
On purposes other than construction / acquisition of any asset — Donations for scholarship 24.16 - 24.16
Total 24.16 - 24.16
For the year ended December 31, 2020
Particulars L
In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
On purposes other than construction / acquisition of any asset — Donations for scholarship 14.26 - 14.26
Total 14.26 14.26
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Note 38: Employee benefits

a)  Defined contribution plans:
The company deposits an amount determined at a fixed percentage of basic pay every month to the state administered Provident fund, Employee
State Insurance (ESI) for the benefit of employees. The contributions payable to these plans by the company are at the rates specified in the rules of
the schemes.

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as follows:

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Provident fund paid to the authorities 24.33 24.11
Employee state insurance paid to the authorities 0.67 0.86
Contribution to other funds (Employee welfare etc.) 0.40 0.38
Total 25.40 25.35

b)  Defined benefit plans -Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, government by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Entitles an employee, who has
rendered at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in
excess of six months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned.

Inherent risk:

The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risk pertaining to the plan. In particular,
this exposes the Company, to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience, inadequate return on underlying plan
assets. This may result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan
is not subject to longevity risk.

The following table sets forth the status of the Gratuity plan of the Company and the amounts recognised in the balance sheet and statement of
profit and loss:

(i) Amounts recognised in Note 19 and Note 23 of Balance sheet

Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Present value of funded obligation 122.36 122.57
Less: Fair value of plan assets (7.85) (12.59)
Net liability 114.51 109.98
- Current 96.15 92.40
- Non current 18.36 17.58
(ii) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss is as follows: (Refer Note 30)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Current service cost 8.24 8.52
Interest cost 6.47 6.78
Total 14.71 15.30
(iii) Amount recognised in other comprehensive income:
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Actuarial loss/(gain) on remeasurement of defined benefit obligation:
Actuarial (gain)/ loss arising from change in financial assumptions (3.51) 3.27
Actuarial (gain)/ loss arising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss arising on account of experience changes 7.08 (7.33)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on remeasurement of planned asset:
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets ' (1.27) (1.20)
Total gain/(loss) 2.30 (5.26)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated
Note 38: Employee benefits (continued)

(iv) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the obligations:

Particulars Asat As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Opening defined benefit obligation 122.57 127.16
Current service cost 8.24 8.52
Interest Cost 6.56 7.29
Actuarial loss/(gain) 3.57 (4.06)
Amount paid to employees (18.58) (16.34)
Closing defined benefit obligation 122.36 122.57
(v) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets:
Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Opening fair value of plan assets 12.59 20.40
Expected return on plan assets 0.09 0.51
Contribution by employer 12.48 6.82
Actual return on plan assets 1.27 1.20
Amount paid to employees (18.58) (16.34)
Closing fair value of plan assets 7.85 12.59
(vi) The details of investments in plan assets are as follows:
Particulars As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Life Insurance Corporation of India 100% 100%
(vii) Principal Actuarial assumptions used:
Particulars Asat As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Discount rates on benefit obligations 6.60% 6.10%
Expected salary increase rates 7.50% 7.50%
Demographic assumptions
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years

(viii)

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields on Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date from the estimated term of the
obligations. The estimates of future salary increase considered in the actuarial valuation take into account factors like inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Assumptions regarding future mortality and experience are set in accordance with published rates under Indian assured life's mortality (2012-2014)
Ult table.

Sensitivity analysis:
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts for the year ended December 31, 2021 shown below:

Particulars Increase (%) Decrease (%)
Discount rate (0.5% Movement) (2.72) (2.67)
Future salary growth (0.5% Movement) 2.75 2.68

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts for the year ended December 31, 2020 shown below.

Particulars Increase (%) Decrease (%)
Discount rate (0.5% Movement) (2.67) (2.52)
Future salary growth (0.5% Movement) 2.68 2.54

Although the analysis does not take into account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of
the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

The estimates of future salary increase considered in the actuarial valuation takes into account factors like inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market. The expected return on plan assets is based on actuarial expectation of the
average long term rate of return expected on investments of the Funds during the estimated term of the obligations. The principal actuarial
assumptions used for the computation of defined plan are also used for the computation of compensated absences of long term benefit.
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Note 38: Employee benefits (continued)

(x) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars : As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
1st Following year 26.21 30.18
2nd Following year 11.58 14.62
3rd Following year 17.92 10.27
4th Following year 16.45 14.77
5th Following year 16.46 14.48
Thereafter 103.26 99.82

(xi) Asat December 31, 2021, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.62 years ( December 31, 2020: 5.67 years)

¢) Compensated absences

The company provides for accumulation of compensated absences by certain categories of its employees. These employees can carry forward a
portion of the unutilized compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof as per company policy. The Group
records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement.

The following table sets forth the status of the compensated absences:

. As at As at

Particulars December 31,2021] ~ December 31, 2020
Net Liability :

- Current 10.10 10.90

- Non Current 31.08 30.59

41.18 41.49

<




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 39: Related party disclosures

a)

Names of related parties and description of relationship with whom there are transactions

U]

Holding Company

Rain Industries Limited (RIL)

(i)

Subsidiary

Renuka Cement Limited (RenCL)

(ii1)

Entities Under Common Control

Rain CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited (RCCVL)
Rain Commodities USA Inc. (RCUSA)
Rain Coke Limited (Rcoke)

Pragnya Priya Foundations (PPF)

(@iv)

Enterprise where key managerial personnel along
with their relatives exercise significant influence

Rain Enterprises Private Limited (REPL)
Rain Entertainments Pvt Ltd

Nivee Property Developers Pvt Ltd (NPDPL)
Arunachala Logistics Pvt Limited (ALPL)
Protector Facilities Management (Pvt) Ltd

™

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy - Chairman

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy - Managing Director

Mr. N. Jagan Mohan Reddy - Director

Mr. P Srinivas - Company Secretary (From June 20, 2019 to August 13th,
2020),

Mr. G.N.V.S.R.R Kumar - Chief Financial Officer

(i)

Non-executive directors

Ms. Nirmala Reddy- Independent Director

Mr. G. Krishna Prasad - Independent Director (Till September 10, 2021)
Mr. Brian Jude McNamara- Independent Director (From February 12, 2021)
Mr. Suribabu Samudrala - Independent Director (From October 21, 2021)
Mr. N. Shiv Keshav Reddy (Son of Managing Director)

(vii)

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. N. Venkata Pranav Reddy (Son of Managing Director)

b)

Transactions with related parties:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Purchases and services (net of reimbursements) from:

1. Rain CII Carbon Vizag Ltd- Purchase of power 144.06 153.88

2. Rain CII Carbon Vizag Ltd-Handling of Pet coke 18.76 70.30

3. Rain CII Carbon LLC - Purchase of Pet coke - - 58.98

4. Rain Industries Limited - Shared Services Expenses 61.84 54.44

5. Rain Industries Limited- Lease Rent 8.30 7.54

6. Arunachala Logistics Pvt Ltd - Freight and Services 4,812.70 3,530.49

7. Arunachala Logistics Pvt Ltd - Purchase of Tipper - 4.94

8. Arunachala Logistics Pvt Ltd - Purchase of Spares 19.60 7.35

Sale of cement:

1. Rain CII Carbon Vizag Ltd 20.19 30.71

2. Rain Entertainments Pvt Ltd 0.04 0.15

3. Pragnya Priya Foundation 19.50 -

4. Nivee Property Developers Pvt Ltd 324 3.57

5. Arunachala Logistics Pvt Ltd 41.23 6.79

Other operating income:

1. Arunachala Logistics Pvt Ltd - Rental Income 0.50 0.42

2. Arunachala Logistics Pvt Ltd - Sale of Scrap 0.32 1.27

3. Renuka Cement Limited - Sale of Container scrap - 0.08

Other operating expenses

1. Arunachala Logistics Pvt Ltd - Rental Expenses 3.86 0.90

2. Protector Facilities Management Pvt Ltd - Man Power Ser 40.85 1.76

Managerial remuneration:

(i) Short-term employee benefits

a) Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy 22.11 22.18

b) Mr. G.N.V.S.R R.Kumar 7.78 7.34

¢) Mr. P. Srinivas - 0.44

d) Mr. D Rajasekhar Reddy 0.72 0.22

(ii) Post-employment benefits

*Refer note below

Commission to Directors

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy 25.00 20.00
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Note 39: Related Party Disclosures (continued)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Salaries paid:
(i) Short-term employee benefits
Mr. N. Venkata Pranav Reddy 0.87 0.87
(ii) Post-employment benefits
Refer note (iii) below
Dividend paid:

Rain industries Limited - 280.17
Donations given:

Pragnya Priya Foundation 19.45 22.50
Remuneration to Independent Directors (Sitting fees):
1. Ms. Nirmala Reddy 0.21 0.25
2. Mr. G. Krishna Prasad 0.24 0.25
3. Mr. Brian Jude Mc Namara 0.29 -
4. Mr. Suri babu 0.05 -
Remuneration to Non-Executive Director (Sitting fees):
1. Mr. N. Shiv Keshav Reddy 0.15 0.15
Note:

(i) No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other
person. Nor any trade or other receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a

director or a member.

(ii) The transactions with related parties are made in the ordinary course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail

in arm’s length transactions with other vendors. Outstanding balances at the year-end is unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

(iii) Long term employee benefits for Key Managerial Personnel

The managerial personnel are covered by the Company's gratuity policy, personal accident insurance policy, Mediclaim insurance
policy taken and are eligible for leave encashment along with other employees of the Company. The proportionate premium paid
towards these policies and provision made for leave encashment pertaining to the managerial personnel has not been included in

the aforementioned disclosures as these are not determined on an individual basis.
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Note 39: Related Party Disclosures (continued)

The Group has the following dues from / to related parties:

Particulars

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Amounts receivable from:
a) Pragnya Priya Foundation - 0.00
b) Nivee Property Developers Pvt Ltd - 0.03
¢) Arunachala Logistics Pvt Limited 110.90 207.71
Amounts payable to:
a) Rain CII Carbon Vizag Limited 17.40 11.25
b) Protector Facilities Management Pvt Ltd 0.45 0.26
Corporate guarantee given on behalf of:
a) Rain Industries Limited (refer note 34) 534.96 1,314.90
Commission payable to Director:
N. Sujith Kumar Reddy 25.00 20.00

Note 40: Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to

maximize the shareholder value.

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity
shareholders. The Board of Directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowing and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Company monitors capital using a ratio of
Net debt' to 'equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash

equivalents. The Company's Net debt to equity ratio is as follows.

Particulars December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Total borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents 44.74 547.84
Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the company 7,541.56 5,843.72
Net debt to equity ratio 0.01 0.09

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.
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Note 41: Fair value measurements:

The following table shows the financial instruments by category carrying and fair value hierarchy:

As at December 31, 2021:

Fair value instruments by category

. Fair value hierarchy
Particulars -
Amortised cost | FVTPL | FVTOCI Total Levell | Level2 | Level3

Financial assets:
Investments 302.38 16.14 - 318.52 0.14 - 16.00
Loans 1,698.87 - - 1,698.87 - - -
Trade receivables 250.44 - - 250.44 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 468.75 - - 468.75 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalent 2,164.44 - - 2,164.44 - - -
Other financial assets 100.34 - - 100.34 - - -

4,985.22 16.14 - 5,001.36 0.14 - 16.00
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including current maturities) 513.49 - - 513.49 - - -
Trade payables 592.38 - - 592.38 - - -
Other‘ffnanmal liabilities (excllrxdmg current 1177.91 i ) 1.177.91 - - -
maturities of long-term borrowings)

2,283.78 - - 2,283.78 - - -

As at December 31, 2020:

Fair value instruments by category

Particulars Fair value hierarchy
Amortised cost | FVTPL | FVTOCI Total Levell | Level2 | Level3
Financial assets:
Investments 302.38 16.17 - 318.55 0.17 - 16.00
Loans 771.83 - - 771.83 - - -
Trade Receivables 25498 - - 254.98
Cash and cash equivalents 126.32 - - 126.32 - - -
Bank balances other than above 1,764.59 - - 1,764.59 - - -
Other financial assets 71.96 - - 71.96 - - -
3,292.06 16.17 - 3,308.23 0.17 - 16.00
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including current maturities) 674.16 - - 674.16 - - -
Trade payables 565.77 - - 565.77 - - -
Other'f{nanmal liabilities (exclt‘xdmg current 1,044.76 ) ) 1,044.76 ) ) i
maturities of long-term borrowings)
2,284.69 - - 2,284.69 - - -

Note:

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, loan receivable, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade payables,
borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values.

Measurement of fair values:

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

#
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Note 42: Financial Risk Management

The Company has put in place risk management systems as applicable to the respective operations. The following explains the objective and
processes of the Company. The Company has a system based approach to risk management, anchored to policies and procedures and internal
financial controls aimed at ensuring early identification, evaluation and management of key financial risks (such as market risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk) that may arise as a consequence of its business operations as well as its investing and financing activities. Accordingly, the
Company’s risk management framework has the objective of ensuring that such risks are managed within acceptable and approved risk
parameters in a disciplined and consistent manner and in compliance with applicable regulation. It also seeks to drive accountability in this
regard.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counter-party failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or
obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration
risks and arises primarily from trade receivables, investments, cash and cash equivalents and balances with banks. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is equal to the carrying value of these financial assets.

The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. The Company has a policy of dealing only with
credit worthy counter parties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults.

Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the
customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk
assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of
customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

« actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change
to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the borrower

« significant changes in the expected performance and behavior of the borrower, including changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
Company and changes in the operating results of the borrower

- Based on the above analysis, the Company does not expect any credit risk from its trade receivables for any of the years reported in this
financial statements.

The age wise break up of trade receivables, net of allowances is given below:

Particulars As at December 31, 2021p at December 31, 2020
Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired 50.87 99.06
Receivables that are past due but not impaired:
Past due 0-30 days 2429 11.08
Past due 31-60 days 19.20 23.40
Past due 61-90 days 14.44 11.94
Past due over 90 days 141.64 109.50
199.57 155.92
Gross receivables 250.44 254.98
Credit impaired 36.64 22.51
Loss allowance (36.64) (22.51)
Net receivables before credit notes 250.44 254.98

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the trade receivable as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020. There is no
significant concentration of credit risk.

Investments

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in subsidiaries and liquid securities. The Company does not expect any
losses from non-performance by these counter-parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry
sectors or specific country risks.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances, fixed deposits and margin money with banks)

international and domestic credit rating agencies.
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Note 42: Financial Risk Management (continued)

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring,
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitiecs when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation. The Company’s treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement
management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position
through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of expected cash
outflows on financial liabilities (other than trade payables). The Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade receivables and loans together
with expected cash outflows on trade payables and other financial liabilities.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and
undiscounted, and include contractual interest payment and excludes impact of netting arrangements (if any):
As at December 31, 2021

Particulars Contractual cash flows
Carrying value Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5-10 years
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including current maturities) 513.49 217.27 210.53 85.69 -
Trade payables 592.38 592.38 - - -
Other financial liabilities (excluding current 1,177.91 1,17791 - - -
maturities of long-term borrowings)
Total 2,283.78 1,987.56 210.53 85.69 -
As at December 31, 2020
Particulars Contractual cash flows
Carrying value Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5-10 years
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including current maturities) 674.16 161.62 214.76 297.52 0.26
Trade payables 565.77 565.77 - - -
Other financial liabilities (excluding current 1,044.76 1,044.76 - - -
maturities of long-term borrowings)
Total 2,284.69 1,772.15 214.76 297.52 0.26

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings
of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the

return.

Currency risk

The Company does not have any foreign currency risk exposure




Rain Cements Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 42: Financial Risk Management (continued)

Sensitivity Analysis:
The Company does not have any foreign currency risk exposure

Cash flow Hedges

The amounts as at December 31, 2021 relating to items designated as hedged items are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Particulars . Eq}uty hea-d Equity head ‘Cost of Eq}llty heavd Equity head
Effective portion of hedging' ‘Effective portion of ‘Cost of hedging'
cash flow' hedges ging cash flow' hedges ost ot hedging
Balance as at January 1, 2021 - - 0.20 -
Cash flow hedges
Changes in fair value:
Amount reclassified to profit or loss:
Foreign currency risk — inventory purchases - - (0.20) -

Amount included in the cost of non-financial items:

Tax on movements in relevant items of Other comprehensive income
during the year

Balance as at December 31,2021

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The Company
adopts a policy of ensuring an optimal mix of its interest rate risk exposure.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to management is as follows:

Particulars Interest rate exposure as at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets 3,956.72 243431
Financial liabilities 86.23 163.80
4,042.95 2,598.11

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets -

Financial liabilities -

Interest rate Sensitivity:
The Company does not have any interest rate risk exposure




Rain Cements Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)
All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 43: Segment Reporting

Ind AS 108 "Operating segment" establishes standard for the way public business report information about operating segment and
related disclosures about product and services, geographic areas and major customers. Based on "management approach" as defined in
Ind AS 108, operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM). All operating segments results are reviewed regularly by the Company's Managing Director to make decisions
and assess their performance. The CODM evaluates the company's performance and allocates resources an overall basis. The Company's
sole reportable segment is manufacture and sale of Cement. Further, the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated

in India, and hence, the Company is considered to operate only in one geographical segment. Accordingly, there are no disclosures to be
provided under Ind AS 108.

Note 44: Covid 19

In view of the national lockdown announced by the Government of India to control the spread of COVID-19 , the Company’s business
operations was temporarily disrupted during month of March 2020 and April 2020. The Company had resumed its operations from
second week of April 2020 in a phased manner as per Government directive and attained normalcy.

The Company, to the extent possible, has considered the risks that may result from the uncertainty relating to the COVID-19 pandemic
and its impact on the carrying amounts of trade receivables, property plant equipment and inventories. The Company has considered
internal and certain external sources of information including economic forecasts and industry reports up to the date of approval of the
financial statements and based on the company's analysis of the current indicators of the future economic condition on its business and
the estimates used in its financial statements, the Company does not foresee any material impact on the recoverability of the carrying
value of the assets.

The impact of COVID-19 remains uncertain and may be different from what we have estimated as of the date of approval of these
financial statements and the risk assessment is a continuous process and the Company will continue to monitor the impact of the changes
in future economic conditions on its business.

As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Rain Cements Limited
ICAI Firm registration number: 116231W/ W-100024 CIN: U23209TG1999PLC031631
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Vikas Somani N.Sujith Kumar Reddy - Ja Mohan Reddy Nellore
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership number: 061272 DIN: 00022383 DIN: 00017633
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 18, 2022 T Date: February 18, 2022 Date: February 18, 2022

! .

G.N.V.S.R.R.Kumar D.Rajasekhara Reddy
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M.No.204139 M.No.A61938

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: February 18, 2022 Date: February 18,2022
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\ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Madhapur, Hyderabad - 500 081.
Phone : 040-4221 2092

E-mail ; creoca@gmail.com
Web : www.crcoca.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of RUTGERS Resins BV

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of M/s RUTGERS Resins BV
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The IND AS Financial Statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is tesponsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, results of operations and cash flows of the Company; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to [raud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). Those Standards require that we comply with cthical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
ervor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and [air presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriale in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

[ FRI: 00286

HYDERABAD /&£

Branch Office : No. 87, 2nd Floor, 21st Cross, 7th Main, N.S. Palya,
BTM 2nd Stage, Bangalore - 560076. Ph : 080-40971818, E-mail : crcocaba@gmail.com



C. RAMACHANDRAM & CO. Continuation Sheet
Chartered Accountants

RUTGERS Resins BV

Independent Auditors’ report (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at December
31, 2021, and of its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Without moditying our opinion. we draw attention to Notes forming part of financial statements,
which describes the basis of preparation of Financial Statements. The financial statements are
prepared for consolidated financial statements of M/s Rain Industries Limited (the holding
company). As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.

For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0028648

VMYLR N,
iy ‘\
&

M 0028545\

Hyderabad o)
DERABAD /2

February 22,2022

}(/)
e

C. Ramachandram

Partner

Membership No.: 25834
UDIN: 22025834ADIWBA3896



RUTGERS Resins BV

Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2021

All amounts arc in Indian Rupces Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note As at As at
Decemnber 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
() Property, Plant and Equipment 3 - 8.85
(b) Deferred tax asset, net - 6.00
- 6.00
2. Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash cquivalents 4 8.85 62.12
(ii) Other financials assets 5 1.774.51 2,149.96
1.783.36 2,212.08
(b) Other current assets 6 - 12.02
TOTAL 1,783.36 2,238.95
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Share Capital 7 74.20 74.20
(b) Other Equity 8 1,694.03 1,758.23
1,768.23 1,832.43
2. Liabilitics
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 9 0.78 62.32
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - -
enterprises and
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 0.78 62.32
(i1) Other financial liabiltiies 10 - -
(b) Provisions
(b) Other Current liablities 10 0.68 4.04
(c) Provisions 11 421 340.16
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 9.46
TOTAL 1,783.36 2,238.95
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0028648

N

C. Ramachandram
Partner
M.No 025834

Place: Hyderabad
Date : February 22, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors

TP

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore

Director
DIN: 00017633




RUTGERS Resins BY
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended December 31,2021

All amounts arc in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended

For the year ended

Note | pyecember 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
1 Total income
Revenue from operations 2 6.51 1,033.45
Other income 14273 194.04
Total income 149.24 1,227.49
2 Expenses
Cost of materials consumed - 227.07
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 14 - 499,70
and stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense 15 - 92.50
Finance costs 16 0.10 0.15
Depreciation expense 3 - 139.16
Loss/ (gain) on foreign currency transactions and translations (net) - (1.31)
Other expenses 17 7747 181.39
Total expenses 77.57 1,138.66
3 Profit before tax (1-2) 71.67 88.83
4  Tax expense (benefit) 18
1. Current tax 9.59 (1.60)
2. Deferred tax 5.70 -
5  Profit for the year (3-4) 56.38 90.43
" 6 Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(11) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Exchange Differences in translating the financial statements of foreign (120.58) 192.22
opcration
(i1) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year (120.58) 192.22
7 Total Comprehensive Income for the year (5+6) (64.20) 282.65
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policics 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0028645

W

C. Ramachandram
Partner
M. No 025834

Place: Hyderabad
Date : February 22, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore

Dircetor
DIN: 00017633




RUTGERS Resins BV
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended December 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and wlhere otlrerwise stated

()

Attributable to owners of the Company
Reserves and Surplus Other comprehensive income
Particulars Equity Share . . Exchange differences on translating Total
Capital Capital Rcla!ned the financial statements of a foreign
Reserve Earnings .
vperation
Balance as at January 1. 2021 74.20 1,538.82 57.92 161.49 1.832.43
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 56.38 (120.58) (64.20)
Dividends - - ) - -
Balance as at December 31, 2021 74.20 1,538.82 114.30 40.91 1,768.23
Attributable to owners of the Company
Reserves and Surplus Other comprehensive income
Particulars Equity Share . ] Exchange differences on franslating Total
Capital Capital l}:msned the financial statements of a forcign
Reserve Earnings ) =
operation
Balance as at January 1, 2020 74.20 1,538.82 (32.51) (30.73) 1,549.78
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 90.43 192.22 282.65
Balance as at December 31, 2020 74.20 1,538,82 57.92 161.49 1,832.43

(i) Description of the purposes of cach reserve within equity:

Reserves and Surplus:

{a) Capital reserve: It consists of pre-acquisition profits. During amalgamation, the excess of net assets taken, over the cost of consideration paid is treated as capital reserve.

(b) Retained earnings: Retained camings represents the net profits after all distributions and transfers to other reserves.
Items of Other Comprehensive Income:

(a) Foreign currency translation reserve (FCTR): Represents the FCTR of the foreign subsidiary. For the purpose of Group consolidation, the financial statements are
transiated at average rate of items in statement of profit and loss and at closing rate of the items in Balance sheet.

In tenns of our report attached

For C. Ramachandram & Co For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors
Chartered Accountants ’
Firm Registration No: 0028645

N\

C. Ramachandram n Mohan Reddy Nellore
Partner Dircctor
M.No 025834 DIN: 00017633

Place: Hyderabad
Datc : February 22, 2022




RUTGERS Resins BV
Cush Flow Statement for the year ended Becember 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions. oxeept share data and wheve otherwise stated

For the yeur caded For the year ended
Decemtrer 31, 2021 December 31, 2028
A. Cash flow from eperating activities
Profit before tavation 71.67 RRR3
Adjustments for :
Depreciation cxpense - 139.16
Interest and other borrowing cosis 0.10 0.13
Interest income (39.84) (37.92)
Provision/reversal of provision for plant closurc costs (102.89) (136.12)
Forcign cxchange (gain) / loss, nct - (130
(142.63) (26.04)
Operating profit befere working capital changes (70.96) 1279
Adjustments for :
Adj far (i I deerease in of ing asscls:
Inventorics - 586.63
Trade reccivables - 19.66
Other Current asscts 247.12 6.39
Trade payables G6.91) (18.34)
Other current liabilities %36 (53.10)
Other financial Habilities - (13.30)
Short-term provisions 227.74) (683.80)
(28.97) {135.80)
Cash generated from operations (99.93) m’”(lT(W)
Income taxes paid. net -
Net cash from/(nsed in) op erating activit {99.93) __[IT(W)
B. Cah flow fram investing activities
Purchase of fixcd assets, including capital advances - {21.16)
Proceeds from sale of preperty, plant and equipment B.79
Fnterest reccived 39.54 3792
Net cash fromf(used in) investing activities 48.63 16.76
C. Cash flgw from fingnding activitics
Intcrest and other borrowing costs paid (0.10) (0.15)
Net cash used in financing activitics .10} (0.13)]
Net increaseftdeercase) in cash and cash cquivatents (A+B+C) (31.40) {106.46)
Cash and cash cquivalents - opening balance 62.12 150.94
Effoct of exch i on al forcign currency cash and cash cquivalents (1L47) 17.64
Cash und cash cquivalents -~ closing balance 8.85 6212
Notes:
(i} The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indircet Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard - 7 on “Staicment on Cash Flows".
(i) Coemponents of Cash and cash cquivaleats
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts RS 62.12
Cash and bank balances - closing balance 885 6212

In terms of our report attached

For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0028645

e

C. Ramachwsdram
Parner
M.No 025834

Place: Hyderabad
Date : February 22 2022

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

Direclor
DIN: 00017633

apgan Mdhian Reddy Nellure




RUTGERS Resins BV
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

As at As at
December 31,2021 December 31,2020
Note 3: Property Plant & Equipment
Property plant and equipment - 8.85
Capital work in progress - -
- 8.85
Note 4: Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
~ in current accounts 8.85 62.12
Total : 8.85 62.12
Note 5; Other current financial assets
Others * 1,774.51 2,149.96
Total 1,774.51 2,149.96
*Receivable from Rain Carbon Germany GmbH
Note 6: Other current assets
Prepaid expenses . ~
Balances with Government authorities
~ VAT credit receivable - 12.02
Total - 12.02

Note 7: Share capital

TIssued, subscribed and paid up
Equity Shares 74.20 74.20

Total 74.20 74.20




RUTGERS Resins BV
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 8: Other equity
(i) Reserves and Surplus

() Capital Reserve
Opening balance
Add: During the year
Closing balance

(b) Retained Earnings
Opening balance

Add: Profit for the period
Closing balance

(ii) Ttems of Other Comprehensive income:

(a) Foreign currency translation reserve
Opening balance

Add: Effect of foreign exchange rate variations
Closing balance

Total
Note 9: Trade payables

Trade payables - micro and small enterprises
Trade payables

Tatal
Note 10; Other Current liabilities

Deferred revenue
Income received in advance (Unearned revenue)
Other payables
- Others
Total

Note 11: Current Provisions

Provision - Others
- Provision - athers*
Total

*Mainly includes provision for plant closure costs for the year ended 2020.

As at
Deeember 31, 2021

As at
December 31, 2020

1,538.82 1,538.82
1,538.82 1,538.82
1,538.82 1,538.82
57.92 (32.51)
56.38 90.43
114.30 57.92
161.49 (30.73)
(120.58) 192,22
40.91 161.49
1,694.03 1,758.23
0.78 62.32
0.78 62.32
0.68 4.04
0.68 4.04
421 340.16
4.21 340.16




RUTGERS Resins BV
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements {continued)

All amounis are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 12:

Note 13:

Note 15:

Note 16:

Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Other operating revenues [Refer Note (1) below]
Revenuc from operations

Notes:

{i) Other opcerating revenues comprises:
Other operating revenues
Total

Other income

Tnterest income

Interest on Joans and advances

Sale of Pet coke

Insurance claims

Gain on derivatives (net)

Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back
Total

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contributions to provident and other funds
Total

Finance costs

Interest expense
Othet borrowiig costs

Tatal

For the year ended

For the year ended

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

- 1,021.33
6.51 1212
6.51 1,033.45
6.51 1212
6.51 12.12
39.84 3792
102 89 136.12
142.73 194.04
- 83.82
- 8.68
- 92.50

0.02 -
0.08 015
0.10 0.15




RUTGERS Resins BY
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All atounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 17: Other expenses

Power and fuel
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery
- Buildings
Insurance
Rent
Rates and taxes
Communication expenses
Travelling and conveyarice
Printing and stationery
Freight expense
Advertisement
Caorporate Social Responsibility and other donations
Consultancy charges {includes audit fecs)
Payment to auditors {Refer Note below]
Business transfer Setttement adjustment
Miscellancous expenses

Total
Note:
Payment to auditors comprises (excluding service tax):
Statutory Audit fees
Total
Note 18: Tax expense
Current tax
(i) Tax for current year
Net current tax

Deferred tax

Total

For the year ended

For the year ended

December 31,2021 December 31, 2020
0.0t 3036
- 1043
- 321
- 14.60
- 11.79
- 2.00
042 159
- 1.53
- 022
- 2126
- 012
2222 37.60
39.12 -
1570 46.68
7747 181.39
9.59 {1.60)
959 (1.60)
5.70 -
13.29 {1.60)
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Rutgers Resins BV
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate Information

Rutgers Resins BV (“RRBV”) (“the Company™) has been incorporated to carry on the business of
producing advanced materials (AM).

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rain Carbon Germany GmbH (“the Holding
Company) which is ultimately held by Rain Industries Limited (“RIL” or “the Ultimate Holding
Company”), a company incorporated in India and listed on the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

(i) Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the
Act.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Relevant Ind AS
effective as on the Company’s annual reporting date (December 31, 2021) have been applied. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on February 22, 2022.

(ii) Functional and presentation currency

The Functional currency of the Company is EURO. These Standalone financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees (INR). All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless
otherwise indicated.

(iii) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

Items Measurement basis

Derivative financial instruments Fair value

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

(refer accounting policy regarding financial

instruments)

Non-cash distribution liability Fair value

Net defined benefit asset/liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit plan

Borrowings Amortised cost using effective interest rate

method




Rutgers Resins BV
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

(iv) Use of estimates

In preparing these Standalone financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results may differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis and appropriate changes are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are reflected in the period
in which such changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are included in the following notes:

— Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

— Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used

— Useful life of property, plant and equipment

~  Impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets

— Expected Credit loss - provision for doubtful debts

Current and Non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i) It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s
normal operating cycle

ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded

iii) Tt is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date or

iv) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria

i) It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle
ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded
iii) It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date or



Rutgers Resins BV
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash or cash equivalents. The Company's operating cycle is within a period of 12 months.

b) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

¢) Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers
and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from sale of goods and services are recognised at the point in time when control of the goods
is transferred to the customer. The revenue is measured on the basis of the consideration defined in
the contract with a customer, including variable consideration, such as discounts, volume rebates, or
other contractual reductions.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised when the related services are performed in accordance
with contract terms.



Rutgers Resins BY
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

d) Other income

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method on time proportion
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/professional valuation less accumulated depreciation.
Cost includes directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including its purchase price, import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Subsequent
expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed asset is capitalised only if it increases the future
benefits from the existing assets beyond its previously assessed standards of performance.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or
loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards acquisition of tangible fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are
shown under other non-current assets as capital advances.

Depreciation on all the tangible fixed assets is provided using the straight-line method based on the
useful life of the assets as prescribed by Schedule 1I to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the assets are
sold or disposed.

Gains and losses on disposal of tangible assets are determined as the difference between net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount, and are presented in the Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss

Items Years
Buildings 15
Plant and machinery 8
Furniture and Fixtures 10

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if approptiate.

f) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the
prevailing year end rates. The resultant gain/loss upon such restatement along with the gain/loss on
account of foreign currency transactions are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In respect
of items covered by forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the inception of
such a forward exchange contract is amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract. Any
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profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such a forward contract is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

g) Investments

Non-current investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for diminution, other than
temporary, if any, in the value of such investments.

h) Tax expense

Current tax is determined based on the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
year. Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences being the difference between the taxable
income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods subject to consideration of prudence. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward of losses are not recognised unless there is a virtual certainty that there
will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

i) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.



Plot No. 538, Souhiti Samricdhi,
C. RAMACHANDRAM & CO' 2nd Floor, Kakatiya Hills,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Madhapur, Hyderabad - 500 081.
Phone : 040-42212099
E-mail : crcoca@gmail.com
Web : www.crcoca.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Rain Carbon GmbH

We have audited the accompanying IND AS financial statements of M/s Rain Carbon GmbH
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The IND AS Financial Statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these lnancial statements that give a truc and fair
view ol the state of affairs, results of operations and cash {lows of the Company; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or ervor.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is (o express an opinion on these fmancial statements based on our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute ol Chartered
Accountas of ndia (ICAD. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requircments and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statcments are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosurcs in
(he financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Fnancial statements, whether due 1o fraud or
error. In making those risk assessiients, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation ol the [inancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposc ol expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the endty's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatencss of accounting
policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting estimates made by managemeni, as well as
cvaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We beliove that ihe audit evidence we nave obtained is sulficient and appropriate to provide « basis for
our audit opinion.

Branch Office : No. 87, 2nd Floor, 21st Cross, 7th Main, N.S. Palya,
BTM 2nd Stage, Bangalore - 560076. Ph : 080-40971818, E-mail : crcocaba@gmail.com



C. RAMACHANDRAM & CO. Continuation Sheet
Chartered Accountants

Rain Carboun GmbH
Independent Auditors’ report (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of alfairs of the company as at December 31,
2021, and of its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Notes forming part of financial statements, which
describes the basis of preparation of Financial Stalements. The financial statements are prepared for
consolidated financial statements of M/s Rain Industrics Limited (the holding company). As a result,
the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.

For C. RAMACHANDRAM & CO
Chartered Accountants
RN 0028648

Of FRN: (028648 2
%&YDERABAD g
Hyderabad %
February 25, 2022
C RAMACHANDRAM

Partner

Membership No.: 25834

UDIN: 22025834ADQOGM3510



Rain Carbon GmbH .

Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
ASSETS
. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1.82 2.84
(b) ROU Lease Asset 4 5.90 7.87
(c) Capital work in progress 3 6.67 -
(d) Other intangible assets 3 12.88 20.87
2727 31.58
(e) Financial Assels
(i) Investments 5 55.860.30 60,202.84
(ii) Long-term loans and advances 6 424.04 45525
() Deferred tax assct, net - 473.44
56,284.34 61,131.53
2. Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 29.00 21.34
(i) Cash and cash cquivalents 8 3.04 67.33
(i1} Loans 9 295.60 34375
(iii) Other financials assets 10 925 78 8006.54
1,254.02 1,239.16
{b) Current tax assets, net 54 85 107.79
(c) Other current assets 11 665.67 351.69
TOTAL 58,286.15 62,861.75
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Share Capital 12 3.62 3.62
(b) Other Equity 13 10,147.83 14,002.82
10,151.45 14,006.44
2. Liabilitics
Non-current liabilitics
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 4 32,540.49 34,677.93
(ii) Other financial liabilitics 15 0.55 1.29
(b) Provisions 16 736.44 905.22
(c) Deferved tax liability, net 2,688.59 2.56
(d) Other non-current liabilities 17 29.97 32.02
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 18 811232 11.030.03
(11) Trade payables 19 2111 15.67
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and smatll enterprises and
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and smalf enterprises 2111 15.67
(i) Other financial liabiltiies 20 3,537.17 1,607.14
(b) Other Current liablitics 21 7.80 17.78
(c) Provisions 22 205.54 26199
(d) Current tax labilities (net) 254.72 303.68
TOTAL T ~wes|
. Corporate information . 1 ]
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

In tenins of our report attached

For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0028645

C. Ramachandram
Partner
M.No 025834

Director
DIN: 00017633

Place: Hydcrabad
Date : February 25, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors




Rain Carbon GmbH
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended December 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

N For the year ended For the year ended
ote December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
1 Total income
Revenue from operations 23 151.19 389.85
Other income 24 4,402.65 3,574.45
Total income 4,553.84 3,964.30
2 Expenses
Employee benefits expense 25 257.16 339.85
Finance costs 26 1.401.83 1,406.59
Depreciation expense 3 15.31 16.48
Loss/ {gain) on forcign currency transactions and translations (nct) (24.17) 51.71
Other expenses 27 2.951.10 1,213.07
Total expenses 4,601.23 3,027.70
3 Profit before tax (1-2) (47.39)1 - 936.60
4 Tax expense 28
1. Current tax (6.40) (111.86)
2. Deferred lax 2,259.05 197.41
5 Profit for the year (3-4) (2,300.04) 851.05
6  Other Comprehensive income
A (i) tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 168.24 (28.04)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (907.33 9.38
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Exchange Differences in translating the financial statements of forcign (815.86) 1,381.97
operation
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year (1,554.95) 1,363.31
7  Total Comprehensive Income for the year (5+6) (3,854.99) 2,214.36
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policics 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the finaneial statements

In terms of our report attached

For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 002864S

B 5.
RPN DR

iy

Y"i (.:K

3 o
I?.rltt:;machandmm fes PRI 0028545 o
artner ¢
M.No 025834 VDERNBAD /5

Place: Hyderabad
Datc : February 25, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Jagan Mehan Reddy Nellore
Director
DIN: 00017633
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Rain Carlbon Gmbll
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended December 31, 2021

All amounts are in fndian Rupees Millions. exeept share data and where otherwise stated

Asat

Decanber 31, 2021

As at
December 31, 24

120

A. Cash Mow from opcrating activities
Profil/(loss) before taxation

Adjustments for :
Depreciation cxpensc
Interest and other borrowing costs
Interest income
Dividend {rom subsidiary companics
Liabilitics / pravisions no longer requircd writien back
Forcign exchange (gain} / Joss, net

Operating profit before working capital chanpey

Adjustments for :
Adjustments for {increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventorics
Trade reccivables
Other non-curent assets

Current loans

Other financial asscts
Otlier current assels
Trade payables

Other corrent labilities
Othkr financial liabilitics
Shor{-icrm provisions
Long-{crm provisions

Cash generated from operationy
Tncome taxes paid. nit

Net cash front operating activitics

B. Cash flow frem investing activitics
Purchasc of fixed asscts, including capital advances
Buy back of Investments
Intercst received
Dividend received from Subsidiarics

Net cash from investing activities

€. Cash flow from Gnancing activitics

(H47.39)
1531 16.48
1,401.83 1.406.59
(32.78) 60.77)
(4,259.50) (3,367.01)
(40.19) 328)
(1.59) 60.50

(2.939.93)

(2,987.32)
9.33) 1547
213 (6.08)
27.83 (297.29)
(72.67) (1,825.14)
(338.00) 208.97
5.08 (14.27)
(8.24) (10,28)
2,359.35 663.63
2.43) (23.70)
3661 58.83

2,020,95

(966.37)

2419

(942.18)

482143

(6.91)
1794
30.90
4.259.50

£1.947.50)

(2,240.71)

3,426.96

936.60

(1,010.90)

(1,229.81)

23
2,008.18)

233

(0.88)

6083
3367.00

Repayment of current borrowings (4,239.50) {2,686.50)
Prococds [rom other cusrent borrowings 2.082.72 3,021.53
Leasc Rent paid (735) (8.23)
Interest on Lease rent paid {0.19)] 0.20)
Interest and othoar borrowing costs paid {1.761.60); (1,636.59)
Net cash used in financing activities {3,94592) {1,309.98)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (66.67) 108.80
Cash and cash equivatents - opening halance 6753 798
Effect af exchange differences on restatement of forcign currency cash and cash cquivalents 279 (49.25)
Cash and cash equivalents - closing batance 34 67.53
Notes:
(i)  The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indiveet Method” as sct out in the Indian Accountiny Standard - 7 on “Statement on Cash Flows™.
(i1} Cumponents of Cash and cash cquivalents
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 264 67.53
Cash and bank balances - closing halance 3.64 6753

In torms of our report attached

For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: D028 (48

e Anopn
-RN: 002064
C. Ramachandram 80 ' ¢
Partuer b HY ERABAD -
M.No 025834 S

Place: Hyderabad
Datc : February 22, 2022

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

Jdan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Director
DIN: 40017633




Rain Carbon GmbH
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 3&4: Property Plant & Equipment

{a) Property plant and equipment
(b) ROU Lease Asset

(c) Capital work-in-progress

(d) Other Intangibie assets

Note 5: Non-current investments

A. Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)
Equity shares carried at cost
Total

(a) aggregate value of unquoted investements

Note 6: Long-term loans and advances
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans and advances
- to employeces
- to related parties

Total

Note 7: Tradc reccivables

Trade receivables considered good - secured
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired
Total

Note 8: Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:

- in current accounts
Total

Note 9: Current Loans
{Unsecured, considered good)
Advances to related pérties
- Other intercompany advances
Total

Note 10: Other current financial asscts

Interest accrued on loans
Others
Total

Note 11: Other current assets
Prepaid expenses
Others

Total

As at
December 31,2021

As at
December 31, 2020

1.82 2.84
5.90 7.87

6.67 -
12.88 20.87
27.27 31.58
55.,860.30 60.202.84
55,860.30 60,202.84
55,860.30 60,202.84
3.79 6.30
420.25 448.95
424.04 455.25
29.00 21.34
29.00 21.34
3.64 67.53
3.64 67.53
295.60 343.75
295.60 343.75

98.15 -
827.63 806.54
925.78 806.54
4.52 9.47
661.15 342.22
665.67 351.69




Rain Carbon GmbH
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Note 12: Share capital
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity Shares 3.62 3.62
Total 3.62 3.62
Note 13: Other equity
(i) Reserves and Surplus
(a) Capital Reserve 11,840.94 11,840.94
Opening balance 11,840.94 11,840.94
Less: Payment on Capital Reduction - -
Closing balance 11,840.94 11,840.94
(b) Retained Earnings
Opening balance (642.10) (1,493.20)
Add: Profit for the period (2,300.02) 851.09
Closing balance (2,942.12) (642.11)
(ii) Items of Other Comprehensive income:
(a) Forcign currency (ranslation rescrve
Opening balance 2,919.61 1,537.64
Add: Effect of foreign exchange rate variations (815.87) 1,381.97
Closing balance 2,103.74 2,919.61
(b) Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/(asset)
Opening balance (115.64) (96.99)
Add: Actuarial gain/(loss) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (739.09) (18.65)
Closing balance (854.73) (115.64)
Total 10,147.83 14,002.80
Note 14: Non-current borrowings
A. Term loans
From banks
Secured 32.537.88 34,675.12
B. Long term maturities of Lease obligations
- Secured 6.21 8.04
Less: Current portion of non-current borrowings disclosed under Note 20 - Other current financial (3.60) (5.23)
liabilities
Total 32,540.49 34,677.93
Note 15: Other financial liabilities )
Payables to employees 0.55 1.29
0.55 1.29
Note 16: Provisions
Provision for employee benefits: - -
- Other defined benefit plans (net) 736.44 905.22
736.44 905.22
Notc 17: Other non-current liabilitics
Others 29.97 32.02
Total ’ 29.97 32.02




Rain Carbon GmbH
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 18: Current borrowings
Loans repayable on demand

Loans and advances from related parties
- Unsecured

Total

Note 19: Trade payables

Tradc payables - micro and small cnterpriscs
Trade payables

Total

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the
end of each accounting year.

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to
the supplicr beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year.

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
Micro, Small and Mcdium Enterpriscs Development Act, 2006.

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of eaach accounting year;
and

() the amount of further intcrest remaining duc and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the intercst dues above are actually paid to the small enterprisc, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductiblic cxpenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Note 20: Other current financial liabilities

Current maturitics of long-term borrowings
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Employee payables

Others

Total
Note 21: Other Current liabilities
Others
Total
Note 22: Provisions
- Provision for other employce bencfits

- Other provisions

Total

As at As at
Deeember 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
8,112.32 11,030.03
8,112.32 11,030.03
2111 15.67
21.11 15.67
3.60 523
202.14 224.70
48.77 31.23
3,282.66 1,345.98
3,537.17 1,607.14
7.80 17.78
7.80 17.78
43.26
205.54 218.75
205.54 261.99




Rain Carbon GmbH
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continuced)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where othenvise stated

Note 23:

Note 24:

Note 25:

Note 26:

Note 27;

Revenue from operations

For the year ended
December 31, 2021

For the year ended
December 31, 2020

Other operating revenues 151.19 389.85
Total 151.19 389.85
Other income

Interest on loans and advances 51.90 48.70
Interest on income tax refund 0.88 12.07
Liabilities / provisions no {onger required written back 40.19 3.28
Dividend Income 4,259.50 3,367.01
Miscellaneous Income 50.18 143.39
Total 4,402.65 3,574.45
Employce benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus 224.01 298.53
Contributions to provident and other funds 3272 40.81
Staff welfare expenses 0.43 0.51
Total 257.16 339.85
Finance costs

Interest expense 1401.15 1404.20
Other borrowing costs 0.49 2.20
Total 1401.04 1406.40
Other expenses

Consumption of stores and sparcs 0.04 0.26
Repairs and maintcnance 0.10 0.00
Insurance 2.85 18.28
Rates and taxes 0.96 1.68
Communication expenses 0.42 117
Travelling and conveyance 0.45 5.26
Printing and stationery 0.17 1.02
Selling and distribution expenses 0.13 1.20
Advertisement 0.85 0.69
Corporate Social Responsibility and other donations 0.31 1.88
Consultancy charges 84.53 44547
Payment to auditors [Refer Note below] 11.38 11.28
Miscellaneous expenses* 2848.94 724.89
Total 2951.13 1213.08
*This includes Loss transfer from its German Subsidiaries during the year amounting to 2,411 Mn's for 2021 and 426 Mn's for
2020 ' ’ '

Note:

Payment to auditors comprises (excluding scrvice tax):

Statutory Audit fees
Other Audit fees
Total

Note 28: Tax expense

Current tax
(1) Tax for current year
Net current tax
Deferred tax

Total

11.38

11.28
11.38 11.28
(6.40) (111.85)
(6.40) (111.85)

2,259.05 19741

2252.65 85.56




Rain Carbon GmbH

Notes forming part of the standalonc financial statements for the year ecnded December 31, 2021 (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 29: Related Party Disclosures

a) Namies of related parties and description of relationship

SL No Relationship Name
(8) [List of related parties where control exists
(i) ]Holding Company Rain CII Carbon LLC [RCC]

Intermediate Holding Company
Intermediate Holding Company
Ultimate Holding Company

@) |Subsidiaries

(it} |Entities Under Common Control

O 09 =1 G\t AW -

N o—

Rain Carbon Inc. {RCI}
Rain Commodities (USA) Inc
Rain Industries Limited[RIL]

Rain Carbon Poland Sp.zo.0.

Rain Carbon Wohnimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG

Rain Carbon Gewerbeimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG

Rain Carbon (Shanghai) Co., Ltd

(formerly known as RUTGERS (Shanghai) Trading Co. Ltd )
Rain Carbon BV (RCBV)

Rain Carbon Germany GmbH

OO0 Rain Carbon LLC

000 RUTGERS Severtar [00OSevertar]

Severtar Holding Ltd.

Rain Carbon Canada Inc.
RUTGERS Polymers Ltd. (RPL) **

**Entities sold on December 31, 2020




Rain Carbon GmbH

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated

b) Transactions with related parties for the year ended December 31, 2021

Nature of Transaction

Related Parties

2021 2020

Revenue from Services

- Rain Carbon Germany GmbH 140.34 334.65

- Rumba Invest SPRL& Co KG 0.50 5.52

- Rain Carbon Canada Inc. 0.61 5.29

- Rain Carbon Inc 3.35 23.45

- Rain Carbon Wohnimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG 1.29 -

- Rain Carbon Gewerbeimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG 1.29 -

- Rain Carbon BV 3.81 7.01

- Ruetgers Polymers Ltd - 1.14

- Rain Carbon Poland Sp.zo.o. - 4.06
Intercompany Administration and IT costs recharges Income - -

- Rain Carbon Germany GmbH 7.18 21.59

- Rain Carbon BVBA 0.25 331

- Rain CII Carbon LLC 0.25 -

- Rain Carbon Inc 42.50 108.68

- Rain Carbon Canada Inc. - 6.19
Loss on Profit/Loss Transfer agreements - -

- Rain Carbon Germany GmbH 2,512.77 527.72

- Rumba Invest SPRL& Co KG 9.40 15.01
Interest Income - -

- 000 RUTGERS Severtar 2439 23.71

- Q00 Rain Carbon 27.51 24.99
Interest Expenses - -

- Rain Carbon Germany GmbH 3245 78.49

- Rain Carbon BVBA 223.14 214.76
Consultancy charges - -

- Rain Carbon Germany GmbH 26.78 278.14

- Rain Industries Limited - 135.80
Dividend Received - -

- Rain Carbon BVBA 4,259.50 2,668.52

- Severtar Holding Ltd. - 698.49
Management fees - -

- Rain Carbon Inc 209.44 160.78
Intercompany Administration and IT costs recharges expenses - -

- Rain Carbon Inc 97.67 -

- Rain Carbon Germany GmbH 1.50 11.21

- Rain Carbon Poland Sp.zo.0. 3.68 3.56




Rain Carbon GmbH

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees , except share data and where otherwise stated

¢) The Company has the following dues from / to related parties:

Loans Given(Including Interest receivable)

- 000 Rain Carbon 346.82 318.65

- 000 RUTGERS Severtar 467.18 474.05
Loans Payable( including Interest)

- Rain Carbon Germany GmbH 1,201.40 773.86

- Rain Carbon BV 6,910.92 10,256.17
Other Payables(Net)

~ Rain Carbon Germany GmbH 389.49 115.88

- Rumba Invest SPRL& Co.KG 95.05 102.27

- Rain Industries Limited - 43.00

- Rain Carbon Inc - 254.39
Other Payables Net (Profit Loss Transfer Agreements)

- Rain Carbon Germany GmbH 2,479.14 529.14
Other Receivables Net (Profit Loss Transfer Agreements)

- Rumba Invest SPRL& Co.KG 718.36 689.81
Other Receivables( Net)

- Rain Carbon Inc 2247 -

- Rain Carbon BV 0.24 -

- Rain CII Carbon LLC 0.24 -

-Rain Carbon Wohnimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG - 3.49
Trade Payables

- Rain Carbon Germany GmbH 7.40 0.54
Trade Receviables

- Rumba Invest SPRL& Co.KG 0.17 -

- Rain Carbon BV - 1.94

- Rain Carbon Gewerbeimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG 0.41 -

- Rain Carbon Wohnimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG 041 -

- Rain Carbon Germany GmbH 28.01 8.20

- Rain Carbon Canada Inc.

11.20
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Rain Carbon GmbH
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note I: Corporate Information

Rain Carbon GmbH (“RCG”), (“the Company™) has been incorporated to carry on the holding
investments.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rain CII Carbon LLC (“the Holding Company) which
is ultimately held by Rain Industries Limited (“RIL” or “the Ultimate Holding Company™), a
company incorporated in India and listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and
Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

(i) Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the
Act.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Relevant Ind AS
effective as on the Company’s annual reporting date (December 31, 2021) have been applied. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on February 25, 2022.

(ii) Functional and presentation currency

The Functional currency of the Company is EURO. These Standalone financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees (INR). All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless
otherwise indicated.

(iii) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

Items Measurement basis
Derivative financial instruments Fair value
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

(refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

Non-cash distribution liability Fair value

Net defined benefit asset/liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit plan

Borrowings Amortised cost using effective interest rate

method




Rain Carbon GmbH
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

(iv) Use of estimates

In preparing these Standalone financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results may differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis and appropriate changes are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are reflected in the period
in which such changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are included in the following notes:

— Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

— Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used

—  Useful life of property, plant and equipment

— Impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets

- Expected Credit loss - provision for doubtful debts

Current and Non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i) Tt is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s
normal operating cycle

ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded

iii) Tt is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date or

iv) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria

i) Tt is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle
i) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded
iii) It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date or



Rain Carbon GmbH
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash or cash equivalents. The Company's operating cycle is within a period of 12 months.

b) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

¢) Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers
and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when contro! of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from sale of goods and services are recognised at the point in time when control of the goods
is transferred to the customer. The revenue is measured on the basis of the consideration defined in
the contract with a customer, including variable consideration, such as discounts, volume rebates, or
other contractual reductions.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised when the related services are performed in accordance
with contract terms.



Rain Carbon GmbH
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

d) Other income

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method on time proportion
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

¢) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/professional valuation less accumulated depreciation.
Cost includes directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including its purchase price, import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Subsequent
expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed asset is capitalised only if it increases the future
benefits from the existing assets beyond its previously assessed standards of performance.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or
loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards acquisition of tangible fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are
shown under other non-current assets as capital advances.

Depreciation on all the tangible fixed assets is provided using the straight-line method based on the
useful life of the assets as prescribed by Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the assets are
sold or disposed.

Gains and losses on disposal of tangible assets are determined as the difference between net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount, and are presented in the Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss

Items ’ Years
Buildings 15
Plant and machinery 8
Furniture and Fixtures 10

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equxpment are
"reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectlvely, if appropriate.

f) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the
prevailing year end rates. The resultant gain/loss upon such restatement along with the gain/loss on
account of foreign currency transactions are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In respect
of items covered by forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the inception of
such a forward exchange contract is amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract. Any



Rain Carbon GmbH
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such a forward contract is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

g) Investments

Non-current investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for diminution, other than
temporary, if any, in the value of such investments.

h) Tax expense

Current tax is determined based on the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
year. Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences being the difference between the taxable
income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods subject to consideration of prudence. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward of losses are not recognised unless there is a virtual certainty that there
will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the Balance Shect date.

i) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.



C. RAMACHANDRAM & CO. PlotNo. 536, Sounit Sarmricdi

A CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Madhapur, Hyderabad - 500 081.
Phone : 040-42212099
E-mail : creoca@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT VeD - www.crooca.in

To the Members of Rain Carbon Holdiugs, LLC

We have audited the accompanying IND AS Financial Statements of M/s Rain Carbon
Holdings, LLC (the Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2021,
and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of
changes in equity and statement ol cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The IND AS Financial Statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
2 2

fair view of the state of affairs, results of operations and cash {lows of the Company; this

includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the

preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements bascd on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Those Standards require that we comply with cthical
requirements and plan and pertorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
{inancial statements are free irom material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the asscssment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements. whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments. the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair prescntation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the
entily’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulTicient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us,
the financial statements give a truc and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at
December 31, 2021, and of its results of operations and its cash lows for the year then ended
in acg

gmn@h Office : No. 87, 2nd Floor, 21st Cross, 7th Main, N.S. Palya,
BTM 2nd Stage, Bangalore - 560076. Ph : 080-40971818, E-mail : crcocaba@gmail.com



C. RAMACHANDRANM & CO.

Continuation Sheet
Chartered Accountants

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Notes forming part of financial
statements. which describes the basis of preparation of Financial Statements. The financial
statements arc prepared for consolidated financial statements of M/s Rain Industrics Limited
(the holding company). As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another
purpose.

For C RAMACHANDRAM & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0028648

Place: Myderabad
Date: February 22,2022

RAMACHANDRAM
Partner

Membership No.: 25834

UDIN: 22025834ADIVDM9825



Rain Carbon Holdings LL.C
Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2021

All amounts arc in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 3 19,668.08 19,668.08
19,668.08 19,668.08
TOTAL 19.668.08 19,668.08
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 4 14,828.28 14,828.28
(b) Other Equity 5 4,839.80 4,839.80
19,668.08 19.668.08
TOTAL 19,668.08 19,668.08
Corporate information | —— T
Significant accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 002864S

W

C. Ramachandram ( c:)
Partner ?
M.No 025834

Place: Hyderabad
Date : February 22, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Director
DIN: 00017633




Rain Carbon Holdings LLC

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended December 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Total income
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit for the year (1-2)

Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Exchange Differences in translating the financial
statements of foreign operation

(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (3+4)

Corporate information
Significant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the linancial statements

For the year ended For the year ended
Note December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
7 590.63 354.79
590.63 354.79
8 - -
590.63 354.79
590.63 354.79
1
2

As per our report of even date attached
For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 0028645

C. Ramachandram
Partner
M.No 025834

Place: Hyderabad
Date : February 22, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director
DIN: 00017633



Rain Carbon Holdings LL.C .
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended December 31, 2021

Al amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 590.63 354.79
Adjustments for :

Dividend from subsidiary companies (590.63) (354.79)

(590.63) (354.79)
Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for :
Short term loans and advanees - -

Cash used in operations -
Income taxes paid, net -

Net cash from operating activitics -

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Dividend received from Subsidiaries - -

Net cash from investing activities - -

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Dividend paid - -

Net cash used in financing activities - N

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) -
Cash and cash equivalents - opening balance - -

Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash - -
cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - closing balance (Refer Note (ii) below) - -

Notes:

(i) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard - 7 on Statement on Cash Flows.
(ii) Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash cquivalents - closing balance - -

Add: Other bank balances -

Cash and bank balances - closing balance - -

As per our report of even date attached

For C. Ramachandram & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 002864S

)
C. Ramachandram

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Director
DIN: 00017633

Partner
M.No 025834

Place: Hyderabad
Date : February 22, 2022




Rain Carbon Holdings LL.C

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended December 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Particulars

Attributable to owne

rs of the Company

Reserves and Surplus

Other comprehensive income

Eq““)'.Sh“"c Exchange differences on translating Total
Capital Retained Earnings the financial statements of a foreign
operation
Balance as at Janaury 1, 2021 14,828.28 (370.61) 5,210.41 19,668.08
Total Comprehiensive Income for the year - 590.63 - 590.63
Dividends - (590.63) - (590.63)
Balance as on December 31, 2021 14,828.28 (370.61) 5,210.41 19,668.08
Attributable to owners of the Company
Reserves and Surplus Qther comprehensive income
Particulars Equity .Share Exchange differences on translating Total
Capital Retained Earnings the financial statements of a foreign
operation
Balance as at Janaury 1, 2020 14,828.28 (370.61) 5,210.41 19,668.08
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 354.79 - 354.79
Dividends - (354.79) - (354.79)
Balance as on December 31,2020 14,828.28 (370.61) 5,210.41 19,668.08

Description of the purposes of each reserve within equity:

Reserves and Surplus:

(a) Retained earnings: Retained eamings represents the nct profits after all distributions and transfers to other reserves,

ftems of Other Comprehensive Income:

(a) Foreign currency translation reserve (FCTR): Represents the FCTR of the foreign subsidiary. For the purpose of Group consolidation, the financial statements are
translated at average rate of items in statement of profit and loss and at closing rate of the items in Balance sheet.

As per our report of even date attached
For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 0028648

A RENEN
C. Ramachandram [
Partuner

M.No 025834

Place: Hyderabad
Date : February 22, 2022

K HYDERABAD
\\

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

o %@@\

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Director
DIN: 00017633




Rain Carbon Holdings LLC
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

As at
December 31, 2021

As at
December 31,2020

Note 3: Non-current investments

A. Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)
Equity shares carried at cost

(i) of subsidiaries

Rain Cli Carbon LLC 19,527.24 19,527.24

Rain ClI Carbon (Vizag) Limited 140.84 140.84

Totat 19,668.08 19,668.08

(x) aggregate amount of unquoted investements 19,668.08 19,668.08
Note 4: Share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid up

Equity Shares 14,828.28 14,828.28

Total 14,828.28 14,828.28
Note 5: Other equity

{i) Rescrves and Surplus

(a) Retained Earnings

QOpening balance (370.61) {370.61)

Add: Profit for the period 590,63 354,79

Less: Dividend (590.63) (354.79)

Closing balance (370.61) {370.61)

(ii) Items of Other Comprehensive income:

(a) Foreign currency translation reserve

Opening balance 5,210.41 5,210.41

Add: Effect of foreign exchange rate variations - .

Closing balance 5,210.41 5,210.41

Totat 4,839.80 4,839.80




Rain Carbon Holdings LLC
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended

For the year ended

December 31, 2021 Deecmber 31, 2020
Note 7: Other income
Dividend income from long term investments 590.63 354.79
Total 590.63 354.79

Note 8: Other expenses

Payment to auditors [Refer Note below] .

Total -

Note:

Payment to auditors comprises (excluding GST):
Statutory Audit -

Total ) -




Rain Carbon Holdings LL.C
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 9: Related Party Disclosures

a) Names of related parties and description of relationship
Sl No Relationship

(a) |List of related parties where control exists

Name

1__Rain Carbon Inc. [RCI]

(1) {Holding company
year/balances exists at year end

(b) |Other related partics where transactions have taken place during the

(i) |Entities under common control 1 Rain CHl Carbon LLC [RCC}

b) Transactions with related partics:

Particulars Year cnded Year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Dividend Paid
a) RCI 590.63 354.79
Dividend Received
a) RCC 590.63 354.79




Rain Carbon Holdings, LLC
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate Information

Rain Carbon Holdings, LLC (“RCH”) (“the Company”) has been incorporated to carry on the
businesses of producing calcined petroleum coke (CPC), trading metallic and/or non-metallic
substances, and investing in entities engaged in such businesses.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rain Carbon Inc. which in turn a wholly owned
subsidiary of Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. (“RCUSA™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Rain
Industries Limited (“RIL” or “the Ultimate Holding Company™), a company incorporated in India and
listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

(i) Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the
Act.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Relevant Ind AS
effective as on the Company’s annual reporting date (December 31, 2021) has been applied. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on February 22, 2022.

(ii) Functional and presentation currency

The Functional currency of the Company is US Dollars (USD). These Standalone financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupees (INR). All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions,
unless otherwise indicated.

(iii) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

Items Measurement basis

Derivative financial instruments Fair value

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

(refer accounting policy regarding financial

instruments)

Non-cash distribution liability Fair value

Net defined benefit asset/liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit plan

Borrowings Amortised cost using effective interest rate

method




Rain Carbon Holdings, LLC
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

(iv) Use of estimates

In preparing these Standalone financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results may differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis and appropriate changes are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are reflected in the period
in which such changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are included in the following notes:

— Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

-~ Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used

— Useful life of property, plant and equipment

— Impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets

— Expected Credit loss - provision for doubtful debts

Current and Non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i) It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s
normal operating cycle

i) Itis held prilharily for the purpose of being traded

iii) It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date or

iv) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.



Rain Carbon Holdings, LLC
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria

i) Itisexpected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle

i) Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded

iil) It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date or

iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash or cash equivalents. The Company's operating cycle is within a period of 12 months.

b) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

¢) Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers
and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.



Rain Carbon Holdings, LLC
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

Revenue from sale of goods and services are recognised at the point in time when control of the goods
is transferred to the customer. The revenue is measured on the basis of the consideration defined in
the contract with a customer, including variable consideration, such as discounts, volume rebates, or
other contractual reductions.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised when the related services are performed in accordance
with contract terms.

d) Other income

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method on time proportion
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/professional valuation less accumulated depreciation.
Cost includes directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including its purchase price, import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Subsequent
expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed asset is capitalised only if it increases the future
benefits from the existing assets beyond its previously assessed standards of performance.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or
loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards acquisition of tangible fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are
shown under other non-current assets as capital advances.

Depreciation on all the tangible fixed assets is provided using the straight-line method based on the
useful life of the assets as prescribed by Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the assets are
sold or disposed.

Gains and losses on disposal of tangible assets are determined as the difference between net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount, and are presented in the Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the
prevailing year end rates. The resultant gain/loss upon such restatement along with the gain/loss on
account of foreign currency transactions are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In respect
of items covered by forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the inception of



Rain Carbon Holdings, L1.C
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

such a forward exchange contract is amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract. Any
profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such a forward contract is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

g) Investments

Non-current investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for diminution, other than
temporary, if any, in the value of such investments.

h) Tax expense

Current tax is determined based on the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
year. Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences being the difference between the taxable
income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods subject to consideration of prudence. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward of losses are not recognised unless there is a virtual certainty that there
will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

i) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

j) Dividend declared

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no fonger at the discretion of the Company.



Plot No. 539, Souhiti Samriddhi,
C. RAMACHANDRAM & CO. 2nd Floor, Kakatiyales,
N CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Madhapur, Hyderabad - 506 081.
Phone : 040-42212029
E-mail : creoca@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT VeP  : www.crcoca.in

To the Members of Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.

We have audited the accompanying IND AS Financial Statements of M/s Rain Commodities
(USA) Inc. (the Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2021, and
the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash {lows for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policics and other explanatory information.

The IND AS Financial Statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Aanagement is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view ol the state of afTairs. results of operations and cash flows of the Company; this
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control rclevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibifity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICA1). Those Standards require that we comply with cthical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures seleeted depend on the auditor’s
judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement ot the financial
statements. whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant (o the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriatc in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policics used and the reasonabieness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation ol the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the fnancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at
December 31, 2021, and of its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with the provisions ol the Companies Act. 2013,

A
(9 TR 002551512
K HYDERABAD /
N2 /

o
K

.

<
\{f ;

Y .
®ranch Office : No. 87, 2nd Floor, 21st Cross, 7th Main, N.S. Palya,
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C. RAMACHANDRAM & CO.

Continuation Sheet
" Chartered Accountants

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Without modifying our opinion. we draw attention to Notes forming part of financial
statements. which describes the basis of preparation of Financial Statements. The financial
statements are prepared for consolidated financial statements of M/s Rain Industries Limited
(the holding company). As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another
purpose.

For C RAMACHANDRAM & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 002864S

/C RAMACHANDRAM
Partner

Membership No.: 25834
UDIN: 22025834ADIVWD3967

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 22, 2022



Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.
Balance Sheet as at December 31,2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note As at As at
Dccember 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 6.65 21.32
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 4 23.269.74 21,762.34
(c) Non-current tax assets (net) 371.96 387.65
23,641.70 22,149.99
2. Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents S 28.19 12.84
(i1) Loans 6 030 0.30
(iit) Other financials assets 7 534.96 -
563.45 13.14
TOTAL 24,211.80 22,184.45
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Share Capital 8 7,732.13 7,732.13
(b) Other Equity 9 14,452.80 11,484.26
22,184.93 19,216.39
2. Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(t) Borrowings 10 1,486.00 87.66
(b) Deferred tax liability, nct 50.74 18.87
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11 - 170.31
(ii) Other financial Liabilities 12 480.92 2,683.72
(b) Other Current liabilities 13 9.21 7.50
TOTAL 24,211.80 22,184.45
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For C. Ramachandram & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 002864S

C. Ramachandram
Partner
M.No 025834

Director
DIN: 00017633

Place: Hyderabad
Date : February 22, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

I o S O

Jagan Mohan Reddy Neilore




Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended December 31, 2021

* All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Not For the year ended For the year ended
frote December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
1  Total income
Other income 14 3,573.67 24.92
Total income 3,573.67 24.92
2 Expenses
Finance costs 15 81.85 107.33
Depreciation expense 14.96 15.00
Other expenses . 16 52.37 7.86
Total expenses 149.18 130.19
3 Profit/(Loss) before tax (1-2) 3,424.49 (105.27)
4 Tax expense (benefit) 17
I. Current tax (31.34) -
2. Deferred tax 32.33 541
5 Profit/(Loss) for the year (3-4) 3,423.50 (110.68)
6 Other Comprehensive profit/(Loss)
A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Exchange Differences in translating the financial statements of foreign (42.96) (55.48)
operation
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive profit/(Loss) for the year (42.96) (55.48)
Total Comprehensive profit/(Loss) for the year (5+6) 3,380.54 (166.16)
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For C. Ramachandram & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants .
Firm Registration No: 0028645 O f‘“%
/s V—'\ﬁcj\
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- 2} H‘(DERABAcyg’
C. Ramachandram "77’/2%\\’_/\\&@ J:fgan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Partner \io ACC! Director
M.No 025834 DIN: 00017633
Place: Hyderabad
Date : February 22, 2022




Rain Commoedities (USA) Inc.
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended December 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except sharc data and where otherwise stated

U]

Attributable to owners of the Company
Reserves and Surplus | Other comprehensive income
Particulars Equity Share | Preferential . N Exchang.c differences .0" Total
Capital Sbare Capital Capital Rcta{m‘d translating the financial
Reserve Earnings statements of a foreign
operation
Balance as at January 1, 2021 906.67 6,825.46 339.96 9.586.91 1,557.40 19,216.39
Total Comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year - - - 3,423.50 (42.96) 3,380.54
Dividends - - - (412.00) - (412.00)
Balance as at December 31, 2021 906.67 6,825.46 339.96 12,598.41 1,514.43 22,184.93
Attributable to owners of the Company
Reserves and Surplus | Other comprehensive income
Particulars Equity Share | Preferential . . Excllang:c differences .0" Total
Capital Share Capital Capital Rcta{ned translating the ﬁnan.cml
Reserve Earnings statements of a foreign
operation
Balance as at January 1, 2020 906.67 6,825.46 339.96 9,785.74 1,612.88 19,470.70
Total Comprehensive loss for the year - - - (110.68) (55.48) (166.16)
Dividends - - - (88.15) - (88.15)
Balance as at December 31, 2020 906.67 6,825.46 339.96 9,586.91 1,557.40 19,216.39

(ii) Description of the purposes of each reserve within equity:

Reserves and Surplus:

(a) Capital reserve: It consists of pre-acquisition profits. During amalgamation, the excess of net assets taken, over the cost of consideration paid is treated as capital reserve.

(b) Retained earnings: Retained eamings represents the net profits after all distributions and transfers to other reserves.

1tems of Other Comprehensive Income:

(a) Foreign currency translation reserve (FCTR): Represents the FCTR of the foreign subsidiary. For the purpose of Group consolidation, the financial statements are
translated at average rate of items in statement of profit and loss and at closing rate of the itemns in Balance sheet.

In terms of our report attached

For C. Ramachandram & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0028648

C. Ramachandram
Partner
M.No 025834

Jagan Mohan Reddy Neltore
Director
DIN: 00017633

Place: Hyderabad
Date : February 22,2022




Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended December 31, 2021

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profv{Lass) before taxation 3,424.49 (105.27)
Adjustments for : -
Depreciation expense 14.96 15.00
Interest and other borrowing costs 81.85 107.33
Interest income - (17.30)
Dividend from subsidiary companies (3,510.92) -
(3.414.11) 105,03
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes —‘B;; —(024)
Adjustments for:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assels:
Other financial assets 0.02 -
Other current liabilities 1.98 {0.36)
Other financial liabitities {51.86) (1.09)
wse)| (1.45)
Cash used in operations (39.48) —(]6‘))
Income taxes paid, net 52.66 -
Net cash Mvom/(used in) eperating activities 13.18 _——a—ﬁ;
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Loans repaid by subsidiaries during the year - 694.84
Purchase of non-current investments : (1,507.40) -
Interest received - 4720
Dividend received from Subsidiaries 2,974.93 -
Net cash from invesfing activities 1,467.53 W
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 1,507.40 -
Repayment of non-current borrowings (2,297.32) (713.16)
Net increase / (decrease} in working capital borrowings (184.46) 171.57
Interest and other borrowing costs paid {78.69) {107.98)
Dividend paid (including tax on dividend) (412.00) (88.15)
Net cash used in financing activitics W -‘W
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 15.64 2.63
Cash and cash equivalents - opening balance 12.84 9.98
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents {0.29) 0.23
Cash and cash cquivalents - closing balance BFTRT) T 1284 |

Notes:

(1) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard - 7 on "Statement on Cash Flows”.

{i1) Components of Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:

- in current accounts 28.19 12.84
Cash and bank balances - closing balance 28.19 12.84

(ii1) Comparative figures of the previous year, where necessary, have been regrouped to conform to these of the current year.

In terins of our report attached

For C. Ramachandram & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0028645

C. Ramachandram Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Partner

M No 025834

Director
DIN: 00017633

Place: Hydcerabad
Date : February 22, 2022
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Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwisc stated

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Note 4: Non-current investments
A. Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)
Equity shares carried at cost
(i) of subsidiaries
Rain Carbon Inc 22.920.58 2141318
Rain Global Services LLC 349.16 349.16
Total 23,269.74 21,762.34
(a) aggregate value of unquoted investments 23,269.74 21,762.34
1¢ 5: Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 28.19 12.84
Total 28.19 12.84
Note 6: Current Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits 0.30 0.30
Total 0.30 0.30
Note 7: Other current financial asscts
Other reccivables 534.96 -
Total 534.96 -
ste 8: Share capital
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity Shares 906.67 906.67
Preference Shares 6,825.46 6,825.46
Total : : : 7,732.13 7,732.13




Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 9: Other cquity

(i) Reserves and Surplus

{a) Capital Reserve

{b) Retained Earnings
Opening balance

Add: Profit/(Loss) for the period

Less: Dividend paid
Closing balance

(ii) Items of Other Comprchensive income:
{a) Forcign currency translation reserve
Opening balance
Add: Effect of foreign exchange rate variations
Closing balance
Total

Note 10: Non-current borrowings
Loans and advances from related parties (Unsecured)
Less: Current maturities of non-current borrowings disclosed under Note 12 - Other current financial
liabilities
Total

Note 11: Current borrowings
Loans repayable on demand
Loans and advances from related partics

- Unsecured

Total

Note 12: Other current financial Habilitics
Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Others

- Contractually reimbursable expenses

Total

Note 13: Other Current liabilitics

Statutory remittances

Total

As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
339.96 339.96
9,586.91 9,785.74
3,423.50 (110.68)
(412.00) (88.15)
12,598.41 9,586.91
1,557.40 1,612.88
(42.96) (55.48)
1,514.43 1,557.40
14,452.80 11,484.26
1,575.16 2,337.60
89.16 2,249.94
1,486.00 87.66
- 17031
- 170.31
89.16 2,249.94
447 1.45
387.29 43233
480.92 2,683.72
921} 7.50
9.21 7.50




Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwisc stated

For the year ended
December 31, 2021

For the year ended
December 31,2020

Note 14: Other income

Interest on loans and advances ; - 17.30
Dividend income from long term investments 3,510.92 -
Rental income from operating leases 7.80 7.62
Miscellaneous income 54.95 -
Total 3,573.67 24.92
Note 15: Finance costs
Interest expense 81.03 106.58
Other borrowing costs 0.82 0.75
Total 81.85 107.33
Note 16: Other expenses
Repairs and maintenance
- Others 2.42 231
Rates and taxes 3.15 3.35
Corporate Social Responsibility and other donations 0.73 220
Consultancy charges 46.07 -
Payment to auditors [Refer Note below] - -
Total 52.37 7.86
Payment to auditors comprises (excluding GST):
Statutory Audit - -
Total - -
Note 17: Tax expense
Current tax
(i) Tax for current year (31.34) -
Net current tax (31.34) -
Deferred tax 32.33 5.41
Total . 0.99 541
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 18: Related Party Disclosures

a) Names of related parties and description of relationship

SL N Relationship Name
(a) |List of related parties where control exists
(1) |Holding Company 1 Rain Industries Limited [RIL]
(b) {Other related parties where transactions have taken place during the year/balances exists at year end

Entities under common control

1 Rain Carbon Inc. [RCI]
2 Rain CII Carbon LLC [RCC]

b)  Transactions with related parties:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Rent Income

a) RCC 7.80 7.62
Interest Income

a) RCI - 17.30
Interest Expenditure

a) RIL 69.74 10594

b) RCI 12,11 0.64
Dividend Paid

a) RIL 412.01 88.15
Repayment of borrowings

a) RIL 2,297.32 71316
Dividend Received

a) RCI 3,510.92 -
(¢) Thbe Company has the following dues from / to related parties:

. As at As at
Particulars December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Loans from

a)RIL 1,575.16 2,337.60

b) RCI - 17031
Accrued interest payable

a) RIL 3.64 0.64
Dividend reccivable

a) RCI 534.96 -
Amounts payable to

a) RCC 387.29 43233




Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate Information

Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. (“RCUSA”) (“the Company™) has been incorporated to carry on the
businesses of producing calcined petroleum coke (CPC), trading metallic and/or non-metallic
substances, investing in entities engaged in such businesses and to provide freight forwarding services.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rain Industries Limited (“RIL” or “the Holding
Company™), a company incorporated in India and listed on the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company was incorporated in the State of
Delaware, United States of America on November 2, 2005.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

(i) Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the
Act.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Relevant Ind AS
effective as on the Company’s annual reporting date (December 31, 2021) have been applied. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
February 22, 2022.

(ii) Functional and presentation currency

The Functional currency of the Company is US Dollars (USD). These Standalone financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupees (INR). All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless
otherwise indicated.

(iii) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

Items Measurement basis
Derivative financial instruments Fair value
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

(refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

Non-cash distribution liability Fair value

Net defined benefit asset/liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit plan

Borrowings Amortised cost using effective interest rate

method




Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

(iv) Use of estimates

In preparing these Standalone financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results may differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis and appropriate changes are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are reflected in the period
in which such changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are included in the following notes:

— Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

— Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses
carried forward can be used

— Useful life of property, plant and equipment

— Impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets

— Expected Credit loss - provision for doubtful debts

Current and Non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i) Itisexpected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle

ii) 1t is held primarily for the purpose of being traded

iii) It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date or

iv) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria

i) Itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle
i) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded
iii) It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date or
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
or cash equivalents. The Company's operating cycle is within a period of 12 months.

b) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

¢) Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers
and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from sale of goods and services are recognised at the point in time when control of the goods
is transferred to the customer. The revenue is measured on the basis of the consideration defined in the
contract with a customer, including variable consideration, such as discounts, volume rebates, or other
contractual reductions.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised when the related services are performed in accordance
with contract terms.



Rain Commodities (USA) Inc.
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (continued)

d) Other income
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method on time proportion method.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/professional valuation less accumulated depreciation.
Cost includes directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including its purchase price, import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Subsequent
expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed asset is capitalised only if it increases the future benefits
from the existing assets beyond its previously assessed standards of performance.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards acquisition of tangible fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are
shown under other non-current assets as capital advances.

Depreciation on all the tangible fixed assets is provided using the straight-line method based on the
useful life of the assets as prescribed by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of installation till the date the assets are sold
or disposed.

Gains and losses on disposal of tangible assets are determined as the difference between net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount, and are presented in the Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss

Items Years
Buildings 15
Furniture and Fixtures 10

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the
prevailing year end rates. The resultant gain/loss upon such restatement along with the gain/loss on
account of foreign currency transactions are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In respect
of items covered by forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the inception of
such a forward exchange contract is amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract. Any
profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such a forward contract is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
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g) Investments

Non-current investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for diminution, other than
temporary, if any, in the value of such investments.

h) Tax expense

Current tax is determined based on the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year.
Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences being the difference between the taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods subject to consideration of prudence. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed depreciation and carry
forward of losses are not recognised unless there is a virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future
taxable income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been measured
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet
date.

i) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

j) Dividend declared

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company.
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